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INTRODUCTORY SECTION 



EXCELLENCE 
MADE HERE 
— CITYOFRUSTON — 

Mayor Ronny Walker 

May 29, 2020 

Mayor Ronny Walker 
Members of the City Council 
City of Ruston, Louisiana 

Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended 
September 30, 2019. The financial statements were prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with 
generally accepted government auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants. I believe this report presents comprehensive information about the 
City's financial and operating activities during fiscal year 2019 that is useful to taxpayers, 
citizens, and other interested persons. 

This report was prepared by the Finance Department and consists of management's 
representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management 
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information 
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, 
management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework 
that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and 
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial 
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not 
outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has 
been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial 
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to 
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 
material respects. 

In accordance with the Lawrason Act, the City Council is required to provide for on 
annual independent audit of the accounts and financial transactions of the City by a 
firm of independent certified public accountants duly licensed to practice in the State 
of Louisiana. The accounting firm of Heard, McElroy and Vestal was selected by the 
City to conduct its annual audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended 
September 30,2019, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering unmodified opinions that the City's financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, are fairly presented in conformity with 
GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 



The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, 
federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal 
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the 
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial 
statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance 
with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal 
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available 
in the City's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement 
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the City of Ruston 

The City of Ruston was incorporated in 1898. It is located in North Central Louisiana at 
the cross roads of U.S. Highway 167, Interstate 20 and U.S. Highway 80, approximately 
thirty-five miles south of Arkansas. Ruston is the seat of Lincoln Parish. The current area 
of the City is approximately 21 square miles. 

The City of Ruston has been organized under a Mayor - Board of Aldermen form of 
government. There is a five member board, with each member selected for four year 
terms from separate wards of the City. The Mayor is elected at-large for a four-year 
term, is not a member of the council, but has veto power over council action. 

The City provides a wide range of services including public safety, highways and streets, 
sanitation, electric, telecommunications, water, and sewer services, airports, 
ambulance, recreational activities, general administration functions, and others. 

These financial statements present the City of Ruston (the primary government) and its 
component units. The component units are included in the City's reporting entity 
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. 
Included as discretely presented component units is the financial data for the Ruston 
City Judge's Office and the Ruston City Marshal. They are reported separately within 
the City's financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the 
City. Additional information on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes 
to the financial statements. 

Budgetary Control 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and 
control. The Treasurer's Office compiles for the Mayor estimates of revenues and 
requests for appropriations of the annual budget. Before August 31, the Mayor's budget 
is submitted to the Council for possible revision and adoption. The Council conducts a 
public hearing on the budget, which must be adopted by September 30 to become 
effective October 1. State law provides that in no event shall the total appropriations 
exceed total anticipated revenues taking into account the estimated surplus or deficit 
at the end of the current fiscal year. Budgets may be amended during the year with 
Council approval. 



Budgetary control is exercised at the departmental object level, with the exception of 
salaries, regular and overtime, which are at the line item level. Formal budgetary 
integration and encumbrance accounting are employed as management control 
devices during the year. 

Local economy. The City of Ruston and Lincoln Parish have experienced steady 
population growth from 1970 to 2019 with approximately 24,000 City residents and 
47,700 parish residents. The past two years have been a period of extraordinary 
population growth, as evidenced by the sharp increase in new home construction. 

The Tax Increment District continues to provide an economic growth base for the City 
and parish, and the new commercial activities have increased the sales tax revenue of 
the City. Fiscal year 2020 promises to bring even more growth as several new parcels 
have been added to the Cooktown Shopping Center, and the operations of the Sports 
Complex will be at full capacity. 

Louisiana Tech University is still a mainstay in the local economy both as the major 
employer of the area and as a strong partner in the development efforts of the 
community. With our relationship with Louisiana Tech, Ruston is positioned to be a key 
player in the technology sector development along the 1-20 corridor in the near future. 
The City of Ruston provides many amenities while keeping a small town feel, attractive 
to many executives and families relocating to the area for technology employment. 

Long-term financial planning. Recently, sales taxes revenues have maintained the 
same level as the previous year. In the General Fund, sales taxes represent 51% of the 
revenues and transfers in. Because of the increasing trends in retirement costs and 
health insurance, difficulty to balance the budget will exist now and in the future. 

Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the year was 
invested in certificates of deposit, or obligations of the U.S. Treasury. The maturities of 
the investments range from 90 days to two years. 

The City's investment policy is to exercise judgment and care which men of prudence, 
discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs. 
Investments are selected as investments, not for speculation, considering the probable 
safety of the capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. Accordingly, 
deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All of the 
investments held by the City are classified in the category of lowest risk. State statutes 
require that all public funds should be insured or collateralized. The City's policy is not 
to have uninsured/uncollateralized funds which it controls. 

Risk management. The City partially retains the risk for property, liability, workers 
compensation, and general health insurance. As part of this comprehensive plan, 
resources are being accumulated in the respective funds to meet potential losses. 

In addition, various risk control techniques including an employee safety program, drug 
free workplace program with mandatory drug screening for new employees as well as 
random drug screening for current employees, and pre-employment physicals have 
been implemented to minimize accident-related losses. The City has third-party 
coverages subject to self-insured retentions which are more fully described in the notes 
to the financial statements. 



Pension and other postemployment benefits. Substantially all employees of the City of 
Ruston are members of one of the following statewide retirement systems: Municipal 
Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), Statewide Firefighter's Retirement 
System (SFRS), or Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS). 
These systems are multiple employer (cost-shoring), public employee retirement systems 
(PERS), controlled and administered by separate State appointed board of trustees. 
Additional information on the City's pension arrangements and postemployment 
benefits con be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and 
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to 
express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and 
contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor 
and the City Council for their unfailing support of excellence in financial reporting and 
fiscal integrity. 

Sincerely, 

Laura Hartt 
Treasurer 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 



HEARD, MCELROY, & VESTAL 
-LLC-

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 
SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 

318-429-1525 PHONE • 318-429-2070 FAX 

May 29, 2020 

Honorable Mayor Ronny Walker 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Ruston 
Ruston, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fiind, and the aggregate 
remaining fiind information of the City of Ruston, Louisiana (the City) as of and for the year ended 
September 30,2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Ruston City Judge's Office (Judge) and the Ruston City Marshal's Office 
(Marshal), which represent 100% of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely 
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports 
thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for the 
Judge and the Marshal, is based on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
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control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ruston, Louisiana as of September 30, 2019, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress, schedule of employer's share of net pension liability, 
schedule of employer's pension contributions, and budgetary comparison information listed as required 
supplementary information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section and the combining fund financial 
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The combining fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 



The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 29, 2020 on 
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

f L.L.C 
Shreveport, Louisiana 



Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

We offer readers of the City of Ruston's financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Ruston tor the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2019. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. 
This discussion focuses on the primary government of the City. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for the year ended September 30, 2019, include the following: 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at September 30, 2019, by $145,770,095 (net position). 

• The City's total net position increased $1,502,544 for the year ended September 30, 
2019. Net position of governmental activities increased $3,529,123 and net position 
of business-type activities decreased $2,026,580. 

• Total net position of governmental activities is $82,880,836 that includes unrestricted 
net position of ($42,370,995) which is a result primarily from GASB 68 Accounfing 
and Financial Reporfing for Pensions that requires recognizing the actuarial 
determined pension liability of $28,564,001. Another liability as required to be 
reported by GASB 75 Accounfing and Financial Reporfing for Posf-Employmenf 
Benefifs Other than Pensions (OPEB) totals $22,290,060. 

• As of September 30, 2019, the City's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $23,317,379, a decrease of $19,017,746 from the prior 
year. Of this amount $1,634,588 was unassigned and available tor spending; 
$1,954,765 was assigned tor subsequent years' expenditures; $19,728,026 was 
restricted. This restricted amount includes $11,479,933 restricted to fund ongoing 
construction projects, $3,534,797 restricted by sales tax ordinances, $3,877,503 tor 
debt covenants, $106,640 restricted tor Section 8 housing, $643,790 restricted by 
ordinance for use by RPAR; $61,571 assigned tor inventories; and $23,792 assigned 
tor prepaid items. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance tor 
the General Fund was $1,634,588, or 6.38% of total General Fund expenditures and 
transfers out. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Ruston's basic financial 
statements which are the government-wide financial statements, fund financial 
statements, and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Ruston's finances, in a 
manner similar to private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets and deterred 
outflows of resources less liabilities and deterred inflows of resources which results in net 
position. The statement is designed to display the financial position of the City. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position help determine whether the City's financial position 
is improving or deteriorating. 



The statement of activities provides information which shows how the City's net position 
changed as a result of the year's activities. The statement uses the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by private-sector businesses. All 
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
revenue or expense occurs regardless of the timing of when cash is received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the 
City that are financed primarily by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for 
services (governmental activities) from functions where user fees and charges to 
customers help to cover all or most of the cost of services (business-type activities). The 
City's governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, 
and cultural and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include electric, water, 
and sewer systems, telecommunications, and airport and ambulance operations. 

Not only do the government-wide financial statements include the City itself which is the 
primary government, but also its component units, Ruston City Judge's Office, and Ruston 
City Marshal's Office. Although these component units are legally separate, their 
operational or financial relationship with the City makes the City financially accountable 
for them. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the 
financial information presented for the primary government itself. 

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The City of Ruston, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, 
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the City of Ruston's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains fifteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, 
1968SalesTaxSpecial Revenue Fund, 1985SalesTaxSpecial Revenue Fund, 1990SalesTax 
Special Revenue Fund, 2016 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, Ruston Economic 
Development District #1 (EDD#1) Sales TaxSpecial Revenue Fund, Cooktown Economic 
Development District Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund, 1-20 Tax Increment District Fund, 
Moving Ruston Forward (MRF) Capital Project Fund, and Sports Complex Phase II, all of 
which are considered to be major funds. Data for the other five governmental funds are 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these 



non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere 
in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and certain special 
revenue funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided elsewhere in this 
report to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 

Proprietarv funds - The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its 
electric, water, and sewer systems, and telecommunications, airport, and ambulance 
services. Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally 
among the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its 
workmen's compensation, health insurance, purchasing-warehouse, and general and 
auto liability services. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather 
than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the electric, water, and sewer systems, which are considered to be major 
funds of the City of Ruston. Data from the other proprietary funds are also presented 
although they are not considered major funds. 

Conversely, the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the 
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report. 

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

Other information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, 
budgetary schedules are presented as required supplementary information. Also, the 
combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental 
funds, non-major proprietary funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately 
following the notes to the financial statements. 

Financial Analysis of Government-wide Activities 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources 
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $145,770,095 at the close of the 
current fiscal year. The largest portion of the City of Ruston's net position, totaling 
approximately $162 million, reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
streets, drainage, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt that is still outstanding 
used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the 
City's net investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 



Net Position 
September 30, 2019 

Current & other 
assets 

Capitol assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows 

Current & other 
liabilities 

Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows 

Net position: 

Net investment in 

capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Governmental 
Activities 

2018 

$55,663,851 

142.943.163 

198.607.014 

5,851,006 

12,108,957 

111.427.391 

123.537.348 

1,568,959 

75,973,163 

42,823,151 

(39,444,601) 

$79.351.713 

2019 

$31,329,549 

180.457.310 

211.786.858 

5,878,098 

6,823,161 

126.468.313 

133.291.473 

1,492,647 

104,843,058 

20,408,773 

(42.370.995) 

$82.880.836 

Business-type 
activities 

2018 

$12,398,493 

66.994.686 

79.393.179 

3,263,743 

11.213.598 

14.477.342 

56,352,298 

8.563.540 

$64.915.838 

2019 

$9,841,694 

66.633.846 

76.475.539 

4,566,877 

9.019.406 

13.586.283 

56,888,418 

6.000.841 

$62.889.259 

Total 

2018 

$68,062,344 

209.937.849 

278.000.193 

5,851,006 

15,373,700 

122.640.989 

138.016.801 

1,568,959 

131,305,461 

42,823,151 

(29.863.173) 

$144.267.551 

2019 

$41,171,242 

247.091.155 

288.262.397 

5,878,098 

11,390,038 

135.487.719 

146.877.757 

1,492,647 

161,731,476 

20,408,773 

(36.370.154) 

$145.770.095 

24.6% of net position represents resources that are subject to external restriction on how 
they may be used. Accounts reserved by external restrictions account for the total of 
restricted net position. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, with the exception of the deficit in the unrestricted 
net position of the governmental-type activities, the City of Ruston is able to report positive 
balances in all three categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as 
well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

The City of Ruston's net position increased by $1,502,544 during the current fiscal year. Key 
elements of this increase are as follows: 



Changes in Net Position 
For The Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
activities Total 

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 

Proaram revenues: 
Charges for services $2,579,058 $4,895,490 $32,928,469 $33,042,131 $35,507,527 $37,937,621 
Operating grants & 

contributions 1,138,809 1,174,061 - - 1,138,809 1,174,061 
Capitol grants & 

contributions 9,265,995 9,618,891 1,354,745 1,426,770 10,620,740 11,045,661 

General revenues: 
Property tax 1,644,067 1,079,057 - - 1,644,067 1,079,057 
Soles tax 18,406,114 20,723,449 - - 18,406,114 20,723,449 
Other tax 803,644 825,629 - - 803,644 825,629 
Grants & contributions 

(unrestricted) 1,559,442 - - - 1,559,442 -
Other 1.685.750 1.889.781 172.409 226.411 1.858.159 2.116.192 

Total revenues 37.082.879 40.206.358 34.455.623 34.695.312 71.538.502 74.901.669 

Expenses: 
General government 9,704,783 17,692,956 - - 9,704,783 17,692,956 
Public safety 9,186,572 9,697,225 - - 9,186,572 9,697,225 
Public works 1,245,313 8,540,002 - - 1,245,313 8,540,002 
Cultural ^recreation 1,025,099 1,075,670 - - 1,025,099 1,075,670 
Ruston City Judge & 

Ruston City Marshal 628,759 640,147 - - 628,759 640,147 
Interest on debt 2,896,572 2,678,705 - - 2,896,574 2,678,705 
Electric - - 21,887,075 24,629,700 21,887,075 24,629,700 
Water - - 1,889,777 2,073,748 1,889,777 2,073,748 
Sewer - - 3,757,719 3,873,450 3,757,719 3,873,450 
Sports complex - - - 866,165 - 866,165 
Telecommunication - - 691,744 730,161 691,744 730,161 
Airport authority - - 232,059 239,009 232,059 239,009 
Ambulance service - - 705.336 662.187 705.336 662.187 

Total expenses 24.687.098 40.324.705 29.163.710 33.074.420 53.850.810 73.399.125 

Increase (decrease) in 
net position before 
transfers 12,395,781 (118,347) 5,289,803 1,620,892 17,687,692 1,502,544 

Transfers 3.547.507 3.647.472 (3.547.507) (3,647,472) _ _ 

Increase (decrease) in 
net position 15,943,288 3,529,125 1,742,295 (2,026,580) 17,687,692 1,502,544 

Net position beginning 
of year 63,408,425 79,351,713 63,171,432 64,915,838 126,579,859 144,267,551 

Prior Period 
Restatement - - - - - -

Net position end of year .1;79.351.713 .1;82.880.836 .1;64.91 5.838 .1;62.889.258 SI 44.267.551 SI 45.770.095 

Revenues for the City's governmental activities for the year ended September 30, 2019, 
were $40,206,358 compared to $37,082,879 in 2018, a 8.42% increase. General revenues, 
specifically sales tax (51%), is the largest component of revenues. 



Revenues by Sources - Governmental Activities 

Capital grants & 
contributions 

24% 

Charges for services 
12% 

Operating grants 
3% 

Property taxes 
3% 

Sales taxes 
51% 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $40,324,705, an increase of 
approximately $15,637,607 from 2018. The City's largest programs are general government, 
public safety, and public works. The graph below shows the expenses and program 
revenues generated by governmental activities. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
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Business-type Activities. Charges for services for the City of Ruston's business-type activities 
were $33,042,131, an increase of $113,662 from 2018. 

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 

The cost of these activities totaled $33,074,420, an increase of $3,910,710 from 2018. This 
increase is primarily related to repairs and maintenance performed due to damage 
caused by the tornado that occurred in April 2019. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the City of Ruston's Funds 

Governmental Funds 
As noted earlier, the City of Ruston uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a 
useful measure of a City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal 
year. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Ruston's governmental funds 
reported a combined ending fund balance of $23,317,379, a decrease of 
$19,017,746 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of the combined ending fund 
balance, $1,634,588, or 7.01% was unrestricted, unassigned and available for 
spending. $1,954,765 was assigned for subsequent years' expenditures. The 
remainder of the fund balance was restricted to indicate that it was not available 
for new spending because it had already been committed (1) to pay debt service 
($3,877,503) or (2) for other restricted purposes ($15,850,523). 

• The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Ruston. At the end of 
the current fiscal year, unrestricted, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund 
was $1,634,588, the total of which was available for spending at the City Council's 
discretion. The fund balance of the General Fund decreased by $3,285,170. 

• The 1968 Sales Tax Fund had a total fund balance of $308,995 all of which was 
restricted for its specified purposes. Fund balance decreased $12,802 as a result of 
a timing difference in the distribution of prior year sales tax collections. 

• The 1985 Sales Tax Fund had a total fund balance of $155,842 all of which was 
restricted for its specified purposes. Fund balance decreased $52,348 result of a 
timing difference in the distribution of prior year sales tax collections. 

• The 1990 Sales Tax Fund had a total fund balance of $803,406 all of which was 
restricted for its specified purpose. Fund balance increased $7,198 as a result of a 
timing difference in the distribution of prior year sales tax collections. 

• The 2016 Sales Tax Fund had a total fund balance of $945,834 all of which was 
restricted for its specified purpose. Fund balance decreased $419,579 as a result of 
budgeted transfers into the Moving Ruston Forward Capital Projects Fund. 

• The Ruston EDD#1 Sales Tax Fund had a total fund balance of $1,305,234 all of 
which was restricted for its specific purpose. This fund was created in January 2019. 

• Cooktown EDO Sales Tax Fund had a total fund balance of $15,486 all of which was 
restricted for its specific purpose. This fund was created in March 2019. 

• The 1-20 Fund had a restricted fund balance of $7,969,376. Total fund balance 
decreased $7,110,485 as a result of spending towards 1-20 Service Road 
construction projects. 

• The Sports Complex Phase II had a total fund balance of $7,980,543 all of which is 
restricted for its specific purpose. This fund was created during the 2019 fiscal year. 
The fund balance is primarily comprised of bond proceeds. 
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Proprietary funds 
The City of Ruston's proprietary funds provide the some type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

• The unrestricted net position of the Electric System at September 30, 2019, was 
$1,238,941. Total net position for the Electric System decreased $2,596,834 primarily 
as a result of repairs and maintenance from tornado damage. 

• The unrestricted net position for the Water System at September 30, 2019, was 
$4,611,173. Total net position for the Water System increased $16,256. 

• The unrestricted net position for the Sewer System at September 30, 2019, was 
$3,023,713. Total net position for the Sewer System increased $630,729 primarily as 
a result of a capital contribution from capital projects fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The budget policy of the City of Ruston complies with state law, as amended, and as set 
forth in Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government Budget 
Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 etseq.). 

The original budget for the General Fund of the City of Ruston was adopted on September 
9, 2018. During the year, the City Council revised the City's budget one time. The major 
difference between the original budget and the final budget was primarily adjustments 
related to overtime salary pay in public safety departments that historically have high 
turnover. Differences between the budget and the actual results of the General Fund are 
as follows: 

Revenues 

Charges for services were under budget by $1,618,129. This due primarily to the 
Sports Complex operations. The Sports Complex was originally budgeted within the 
General Fund. 
Fines and forfeitures were expected to level off in the second year of the Safe Driver 
Initiative program. Officers work this program on a voluntary basis, and 
participation has leveled off in the second year of operation. Actual revenues were 
less than the budget by $384,858. 

Expenditures 

* Executive operating services were over budget by $763,293 primarily as a result of 
rent paid on the 100,000 square foot building formerly occupied by Monster Moto. 

* Economic Development operating services were over budget by $406,706 as a 
result of marketing videos and other promotional materials promoting the City. 

Capital Assets 

The City of Ruston's investment in capital assets as of September 30, 2019, amounts to 
$247,091,155, net of depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings 
and improvements, streets, drainage, furniture and equipment, and construction in 
progress. The following table shows the value at the end of the fiscal year. 
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Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 

Land & land 
improvements $17,469,168 $17,822,366 $1,572,586 $1,836,270 $19,041,754 $19,658,636 

Buildings 8,072,273 8,307,712 5,535,310 5,358,292 13,607,584 13,666,004 

Improvements 
other than 
buildings 20,971,312 24,000,826 32,587,573 34,183,559 53,558,885 58,184,385 

Equipment 2,892,268 4,298,446 21,966,606 22,278,128 24,858,874 26,576,574 

Infrastructure 13,964,811 13,453,621 - - 13,964,811 13,453,621 

Construction 
in progress 79.573.331 112.574.339 5.332.611 2.977.595 84.905.942 115.551.934 

Total .^142.943.163 .^180.457.310 .^66.994.686 .^66.633.846 .^209.937.849 .^247.091.155 

Long-Term Debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Ruston had total debt outstanding of 
$83,525,428. The City issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2019 totaling $20,000,000 
during the year of which $10,000,000 were disbursed by September 30, 2019. These funds 
are restricted for the completion of the Sports Complex Phase II project. The City also 
issued revolving Taxable Utilities Revenue Bonds Series 2018 totaling $6,000,000. These 
bonds are restricted for improvements to the wastewater collection, treatment and 
disposal system of the City. Disbursements are made from the Department of 
Environmental Quality as expenses are incurred by the City. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

When drafting the budgets for the fiscal year ended 2020, Management considered the 
impact to revenue of the Cooktown EDD sales tax effective April 1, 2019 as well as revenue 
from multiple Sports Complex events. Total expenditures are expected to be slightly less 
than 2019. Health insurance costs remain fairly similar to 2019, and no large pension 
contribution increases are expected. Many capital projects will be completed in 2020, 
requiring use of much of the City's cash and investments to bring these assets into use. 
Property tax continues to increase despite the City not rolling forward its millage rates in 
2019 due to new construction added to the tax roll each year during this period of 
extraordinary growth. The next property reassessment year will be 2020. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all 
those with an interest in the City of Ruston's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should 
be addressed to Julie Keen, City of Ruston Treasurer's Office, 401 North Trenton Street, 
Ruston, LA 71270. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net 
Unbilled revenues 
Due trom other tunds 
Internal balances 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Bond issue costs, net 
Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 
Other capital assets, net ot depreciation 
Total assets 

Deterred outtlow ot resources 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 8,575,409 
18,788,076 
3,735,175 

91,579 

61,571 
77,739 

130,396,705 
50,060,605 

211,786,858 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 2,637,113 
807,524 

1,809,941 
2,329,940 

17,500 
505,175 

1,666,295 
11,350 
56,856 

4,813,864 
61,819,981 
76,475,539 

Total 

11,212,522 
19,595,600 
5,545,116 
2,421,519 

17,500 
505,175 

1,727,865 
89,089 
56,856 

135,210,569 
111,880,586 
288,262,397 

5,878,098 5,878,098 

Component 
Units 

i 1,984,537 

315 

14,105 

1,568 

539,952 
2,540,477 

23,999 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Internal balances 
Accrued interest payable 
Claims 
Deposits 
Non-current liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 
Net pension liability 
Post employment benetlt obligation 

Total liabilities 

Deterred Intlow ot resources 

2,510,156 
2,638,702 

505,175 
642,071 
527,057 

3,723,563 
71,890,689 
28,564,001 
22,290,060 

133,291,473 

1,492,647 

2,004,132 

57,624 

1,223,704 

1,281,417 
9,019,406 

13,586,283 

4,514,288 
2,638,702 

505,175 
699,695 
527,057 

1,223,704 

5,004,980 
80,910,095 
28,564,001 
22,290,060 

146,877,757 

1,492,647 

6,214 
3,252 

284,290 

293,756 

1,782 

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, net ot related debt 104,843,058 56,888,418 161,731,476 
Restricted tor: 
Sales Tax Funds 3,534,797 - 3,534,797 
l-20TIDFund 11,846,879 - 11,846,879 
Moving Ruston Forward Fund (4,469,986) - (4,469,986) 
Sports Complex Phase II 7,980,543 - 7,980,543 
Ruston Parks and Recreation Fund 643,790 - 643,790 
Section 8 Housing Voucher Fund 872,750 - 872,750 

Unrestricted (42,370,995) 6,000,841 (36,370,154) 
Total net position $ 82,880,836 $ 62,889,259 $145,770,095 

539,952 

1,728,986 
$ 2,268,938 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part ot the tlnanclal statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 201 9 

Program Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 
Operating Capitai Primary Government 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmentai Business-type Component 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Totai Units 

Primary Govemment: 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 17,692,936 $ 2,621,806 $ 1,139,867 $ 9,618,891 $ (4,298,890) $ - $ (4,298,890) $ 
Public safety 9,697,223 449,328 14,694 - (9,288,007) - (9,288,007) -
Public works 8,340,002 1,739,092 - - (6,780,910) - (6,780,910) -
Cultural and recreation 1,073,670 63,366 - - (1,010,104) - (1,010,104) -
City Judge and Marshal 640,147 - - - (640,147) - (640,147) -
Interest on long-term debt 2,678,703 - - - (2,678,703) - (2,678,703) -

Total governmental activities 40,824,703 4,893,490 1,174,061 9,618,891 (24,686,268) - (24,636,268) -
Business-type activities: 

Electric System 24,629,700 24,826,082 - - - (808,618) (808,618) -
Water System 2,078,748 2,747,493 - - - 678,747 678,747 -
Sewer System 8,878,430 8,960,703 - 1,141,934 - 1,229,209 1,229,209 -
Sports Complex 866,163 230,662 - - - (613,303) (613,303) -
Telecommunications System 730,161 773,922 - - - 43,761 43,761 -
Airport Authority 289,009 21,244 - 284,816 - 67,031 67,031 -
Ambulance Service 662,187 960,022 - - - 297,833 297,833 -

Total business-type activities 88,074,420 88,042,181 - 1,426,770 - 1,894,482 1,394,482 -
Total primary government 78,899,124 87,987,621 1,174,061 1 1,043,661 (24,686,268) 1,894,482 (28,241,782) -

Component units: 
Ruston City Judge 786,476 880,963 342,440 - - - - 186,929 
Ruston City Marshal 681,393 1 63,836 448,178 - - - - (18,061) 

Total component units $ 1,418,071 $ 346,821 $ 990,618 $ - - - 1 18,868 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes - general purpose 1,079,037 - 1,079,037 -
Property taxes - recreation facilities and programs - - - -
Sales taxes - general purpose 1 2,926,270 - 1 2,926,270 -
Sales taxes - recreation facilities and programs 300,000 - 800,000 -
Sales taxes - street and drainage facilities 600,000 - 600,000 -
Sales taxes - fire protection 1,730,849 - 1,780,849 -
Sales taxes - police protection 1,730,849 - 1,780,849 -
Sales taxes - drug prevention programs 30,000 - 30,000 -
Sales taxes - debt service 8,886,481 - 8,886,481 -
Insurance taxes 426,768 - 426,768 -
Alcoholic beverage taxes 27,088 - 27,038 -
Franchise taxes 871,828 - 871,828 -

Intergovernmental 1,268,383 - 1,268,883 -
Investment earnings 621,896 73,737 693,188 8,791 
Miscellaneous - 1 32,674 1 32,674 -

Tra nsfers 8,647,472 (3,647,472) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 28,163,387 (3,421,062) $24,744,826 8,791 

Change In net position 8,329,128 (2,026,380) 1,302,344 1 22,639 
Net position - beginning 79,831,718 64,913,838 144,267,331 2,146,279 
Net position - ending $ 82,830,836 $ 62,889,238 1 $ 143,770,093 $ 2,268,988 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net 
Unbilled revenues 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 
Inventories, at cost 
Prepaid Items 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Deposits and deferred charges 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Inventories 
Prepaid Items 

Spendable: 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Unasslgned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities and fund balances 

General 
1968 

Soles Tax 
1985 

Sales Tax 
1990 

Sales Tax 
2016 

Sales Tax 

$ 2,353,069 
666,291 

1,062,442 
91,379 

3,067,326 

$ 18,800 

610,813 

233,948 

$ 

391,736 

$ 

280,813 

322,391 

$ 1,843,201 

421,220 

447,432 

61,371 
23,792 

- - - -

9,346,270 863,363 391,736 808,406 2,713,833 

340,634 
97,642 

6,121,028 
78,340 

336,368 233,894 

-
371,183 

1,196,836 

6,637,664 336,368 233,894 - 1,768,019 

61,371 
23,792 

- - - -

1,188,633 
1,634,388 

808,993 133,842 808,406 943,834 

2,906,606 808,993 133,842 808,406 943,834 
$ 9,346,270 $ 863,363 $ 391,736 $ 808,406 $ 2,713,833 
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Moving 

Ruston EDD#1 
Sales Tax 

Cooktown EDD 
Sales Tax 

1-20 TID 
Fund 

Ruston 
Forward 

Fund 

Sports 
Complex 
Phrase II 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Govemmental 

Funds 

$ 261,782 

1 52,576 

1,060,384 

$ 

6,642 

12,144 

$ 796,646 
7,659,160 

996,696 

$ 46,799 

716,426 

$ 694,676 
6,565,665 

1,000,000 

$ 1,656,666 
6,172,441 

766,309 

66,904 

$ 7,560,045 
16,066,577 
6,729,755 

91,579 
10,096,045 

- - - - - - 61,571 
26,792 

1,474,742 15,466 9,454,521 767,222 7,930,543 5,655,022 69,666,664 

1 69,506 

- 662,904 
211,012 
411,229 

1,103,206 
1,756,665 
2,675,165 

- 109,540 

149,979 
1,460 

2,41 6,306 
2,636,702 

1 1,216,177 
79,600 

1 69,506 - 1,465,145 5,267,206 - 260,979 1 6,650,965 

- - - - - - 61,571 
26,792 

1,305,264 15,466 7,969,676 (4,469,966) 7,930,543 4,627,936 
766,110 

1 9,642,666 
1,954,765 
1,634,566 

1,305,264 15,466 7,969,676 (4,469,966) 7,930,543 5,694,046 26,61 7,679 
$ 1,474,742 $ 15,466 $ 9,454,521 $ 767,222 $ 7,930,543 $ 5,655,022 $ 69,666,664 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Fund balances - total governmental tunds $ 23,317,379 

Amounts reported tor governmental activities In the statement ot net assets 
are dltterent because: 

Capital assets used In governmental activities are not tlnanclal resources 
and theretore are not reported In the governmental tunds. 

Governmental capital assets $ 218,167,624 
Accumulated depreciation (37,710,314) 180,457,310 

Untunded post employment benetlt obligations are not tlnanclal 
resources and theretore are not reported In the tunds (22,290,060) 

Net pension liability (28,564,001) 

Deterred outtlows related to pensions 5,878,098 
Deterred intlows related to pensions (1,492,647) 4,385,451 

Other assets used In governmental activities that are not tlnanclal 
resources and theretore are not reported In the governmental tunds. 

Long-term liabilities Including bonds payable are not due and payable In the 
current period and theretore are not reported In the governmental tunds. 

Accrued interest payable (642,071) 
Bonds, notes and compensated absences (75,614,252) (76,256,323) 

Internal service tunds are used by management to charge the costs ot 
certain activities to Individual tunds. The assets and liabilities ot the Internal 
service tunds are reported with governmental acltvltles. 1,831,080 

Net position ot governmental activities $ 82,880,836 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part ot the tlnanclal statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

1968 1985 1990 2016 
General Soles Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax Sales Tax 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Property $ 1,079,057 $ $ $ $ 
Soles - 3,113,559 4,648,353 3,118,559 4,643,262 

Licenses and permits 1,051,599 - - - -
intergovernmentol 1,802,802 - - - -
Chorges for services 1,916,371 - - - -
Fines ond forfeitures 443,742 - - - -
investment earnings 52,826 1 5 23 16 1,312 
Miscelloneous 982,308 - - - -
Gronts 741,811 - - - -

Totol revenues 8,070,516 3,113,574 4,648,376 3,113,575 4,644,574 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Generol government 6,092,037 20,679 701 680 3,268 
Public sofety 9,242,51 1 - - - -
Public works 7,544,444 - - - -
Culture and recreotion - - - - -
City Court ond Marshal 640,147 - - - -

Debt service: 
Principoi - - - - 1,395,000 
interest ond other chorges - - - - 1,732,150 

Copitol outioy - - - - -
Totol expenditures 23,519,139 20,679 701 630 3,130,418 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (15,448,623) 3,097,395 4,647,675 3,117,895 1,514,156 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Bond proceeds - - - - -
Transfers in 1 4,268,890 - - - -
Transfers out (2,105,437) (3,1 10,697) (4,700,023) (3,110,697) (1,933,735) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1 2,1 63,453 (3,1 10,697) (4,700,023) (3,1 10,697) (1,933,735) 
Net change in fund bolonces (3,285,1 70) (1 2,302) (52,348) 7,198 (41 9,579) 

Fund bolonces - beginning 6,1 93,776 321,797 208,1 90 796,203 1,365,413 
Fund balances - ending $ 2,903,606 $ 308,995 $ 155,342 $ 803,406 $ 945,834 
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Moving 
Ruston Sports Nonmajor Total 

Ruston EDD#1 Cooktown EDD 1-20 TID Forward Complex Governmental Governmental 
Sales Tax Sales Tax Fund Fund Phase II Funds Funds 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,079,057 
1,348,812 37,918 - - - 3,807,985 20,723,448 

- - - - - - 1,051,599 
- - 9,618,891 - - 1,1 59,367 1 2,581,060 
- - - - - 59,903 1,976,274 
- - - - - - 443,742 

194 - - 150,616 85,978 330,416 621,396 
- - - - - 5,663 987,971 
- - - - - - 741 ,81 1 

1,349,006 37,918 9,618,891 150,616 85,978 5,363,334 40,206,358 

209 22,432 1,1 24,882 7,264,888 
- - - - - - 9,242,511 
- - - - - - 7,544,444 
- - - - - 951,671 951,671 

- - - - - - 640,147 

- - - - - 1,795,000 3,190,000 
43,563 - - 2,979 - 900,013 2,678,705 

- - 1 6,729,376 22,480,566 2,105,435 43,832 41,359,209 
43,772 22,432 1 6,729,376 22,483,545 2,105,435 4,81 5,398 72,871,575 

1,305,234 1 5,486 (7,110,485) (22,332,929) (2,019,457) 547,936 (32,665,217) 

- - -
4,039,170 

10,000,000 
300,000 

10,000,000 
18,608,060 

(14,960,589) 
- - - 4,039,170 10,000,000 300,000 13,647,471 

1,305,234 1 5,486 (7,110,485) (18,293,759) 7,980,543 847,936 (19,017,746) 
- - 1 5,079,861 1 3,823,773 - 4,546,107 42,335,1 25 

$ 1,305,234 $ 15,486 $ 7,969,376 $ (4,469,986) $ 7,980,543 $ 5,394,043 $ 23,317,379 

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statemen^. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental octlvltles In the stotement of 
octivities ore different becouse: 

$ (19,017,746) 

Governmentol funds report copitol outloys os expenditures. However, 
in the stotement of octivities, the cost of those ossets is ollocoted over 
their estimoted useful lives end reported os depreciotion expense. 

Copitol outloy 
Depreciotion expense 

$ 39,354,957 
(1,840,809) 37,514,148 

The net effect of vohous miscelloneous tronsoctions involving copitol 
ossets (i.e., soles, trode-ins, write offs, end donotions) is to decreose 
net position. 

Post employment benefit obligotion (6,290,237) 

Pension net chonge - GASB 68 (1,790,891 

The issuonce of long-term debt provides current finonciol resources to 
governmentol funds, while the repoyment of the phncipol of long-term 
debt consumes the current finonciol resources of governmentol funds, 
governmentol funds. Neither tronsoction, however, hos ony effect on 
net position. Also, governmentol funds report the effect of issuonce 
costs, premiums, discounts, end similor items when debt is first issued, 
whereos these omounts ore deferred end omortized in the stotement 
of octivities. The detoil of these differences in the treotment of long-
term debt end reloted items is os follows: 

Bond proceeds 
Phncipol poyments 

Some expenses reported in the stotement of octivities do not 
require the use of current finonciol resources end, therefore, 
ore not reported os expenditures in governmentol funds. 

Increose in compensoted obsences 
Increose in occrued interest 

Internol service funds ore used by monogement to chorge the costs 
of certoin octivities to individuol funds. The net revenue of the internol 
service funds is repohed with governmentol octivities. 

Chonge in net position of governmentol octivities 

(10,000,000) 
3,190,000 (6,810,000) 

46,390 
(35,664) 10,726 

(86,877) 

$ 3,529,123 

The occomponying notes ore on integrol port of the fino^^iol stotements. 



CITY OF RUSTOK LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Governmental 
Activities 

Major Funds Nonmajor Funds Internal 
Electric Water Sewer Sports Airport Service 
System System System Complex Telecommunications Authority Ambulance Total Funds 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cosh and cash equivalents $ 1,060,363 $ 24,426 $ 152,793 $ 5,794 $ 78,322 $ 1 68,507 $ 780,027 $ 2,270,232 $ 995,364 
Investments 299,940 258,627 - - - - - 558,566 704,499 
Receivables, net 1,255,744 158,187 167,246 5,802 180,235 19,859 22,868 1,809,941 5,420 
Unbilled revenue 1,863,777 207,593 258,570 - - - - 2,329,940 -
Due from other funds 7,109,115 4,896,386 3,623,404 - - 78,917 490,495 16,198,316 826,737 
Due from other governments - - - - - - 1 7,500 17,500 -
Inventories 1,341,883 161,719 29,421 - 133,272 - - 1,666,295 -
Prepaid items 6,684 397 2,265 - - - 2,003 11,350 53,947 

Total current assets 12,937,506 5,707,335 4,233,699 11,596 391,829 267,283 1,312,893 24,862,140 2,585,967 
Noncurrent assets: 

Restricted: 
Cash and cash equivalents 64,831 127,096 174,953 - - - - 366,880 -
Investments 32,809 105,606 110,543 - - - - 248,958 -

Capital assets: 
Land 627,501 75,070 218,801 - - 914,898 - 1,836,270 -
Construction in progress 1,173,353 4,637 332,964 - 211,770 1,254,871 - 2,977,595 -
Buildings 7,317,632 139,934 151,353 - - 1,094,626 - 8,703,545 13,080 
Improvements other than buildings - - - - - 9,354,435 - 9,354,435 -
Equipment 21,206,197 839,988 31,061,288 - 3,127,046 231,239 1,657,454 58,123,212 76,306 
Distribution and collection systems 46,283,618 17,537,619 19,583,593 - - - - 83,404,831 -
Less accumulated depreciation (50,038,517) (11,759,453) (27,692,730) - (535,434) (6,575,237) (1,164,672) (97,766,042) (75,144) 

Total capital assets (net of 
accumulated depreciation) 26,569,784 6,837,795 23,655,269 - 2,803,382 6,274,832 492,782 66,633,846 14,242 

Deferred bond costs, at cost less amortization - 22,649 34,207 - - - - 56,856 -
Total noncurrent assets 26,667,424 7,093,146 23,974,972 - 2,803,382 6,274,832 492,782 67,306,540 14,242 

Total assets $ 39,604,930 $ 12,800,481 $ 28,208,671 $ 11,596 $ 3,195,211 $ 6,542,115 $ 1,805,675 $ 92,168,680 $ 2,600,209 



Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Major Funds 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position (deficit) 

26,569,784 
1,238,941 

5,488,407 
4,611,173 

$ 27,808,725 $ 10,099,580 

15,259,230 
3,023,713 

18,282,943 

Nonmajor Funds 
Electric Water Sewer Sports 
System System System Complex 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 1,751,137 $ 104,224 $ 100,559 $ 
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Due to other funds 8,437,830 1,227,256 1,303,249 626,937 
Claims and judgments - - - -
Compensated absences 56,919 3,406 20,727 -

Total current liabilities 10,245,886 1,334,886 1,424,535 626,937 
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Customer deposits 1,214,799 - 3,955 -
Bonds payable - - 1,075,000 -
DEQ Clean Drinking Water Revolving Loan - - - -
DHH Revolving Loan fund - 112,000 - -
Due to LADOTD - - - -
Accrued interest 57,624 - - -

Total current liabilities payable from 
restricted assets 1,272,423 112,000 1,078,955 -

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 277,897 16,627 101,198 -
Bonds payable - - 7,055,000 -
DHH Revolving Loan fund - 1,237,388 - -
DEQ Clean Drinking Water Revolving Loan - - 266,040 -

Total noncurrent liabilities 277,897 1,254,015 7,422,238 -
Total liabilities 11,796,206 2,700,901 9,925,728 626,937 

(615,341 
$ (615,341 

$ 33,655 

3,176,355 

1,022 
3,211,032 

4,990 

4,990 
3,21 6,022 

2,803,382 
(2,824,193) 

(20,811 

Airport 
Authority 

13,391 

475,171 

488,562 

4,950 

4,950 

493,512 

),274,832 
(226,229) 

$ 6,048,603 

Ambulance 

446,343 

12,343 
459,852 

60,264 

Total 

15,693,141 

94,41 7 
17,791,690 

1,223,704 
1,075,000 

112,000 

57,624 

2,468,328 

460,977 
7,055,000 
1,237,388 

266,040 

Governmental 
Activities 
Internal 
Service 
Funds 

1,166 $ 2,004,132 $ 13,192 

213,782 
527,057 

754,031 

15,098 

60,264 9,019,406 15,098 
520,116 29,279,424 769,129 

492,782 56,888,418 14,242 
792,777 6,000,841 1,816,838 

$ 1,285,559 $ 62,889,259 $ 1,831,080 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Governmentai 
Activities 

Major Funds Nonmajor Funds internai 
Eiectric Water Sewer Sports Airport Service 
System System System Compiex Telecommunications Authority Ambuiance Totai Funds 

OPERATiNG REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 24,326,082 $ 2,747,495 $ 3,960,705 $ 250,662 $ 775,922 $ 21,244 $ 960,022 $33,042,131 $ 4,406,838 
Charges to other funds - - - - - - - - 229,866 
Rent Income - - - - - 121,796 - 121,793 -
Miscellaneous 6,288 13,727 8,288 162 - 145 2,270 30,880 79,01 1 

Total operating revenues 24,332,370 2,761,222 3,968,993 250,824 775,922 146,182 962,292 33,194,805 4,715,715 

OPERATiNG EXPENSES 
Personnel services 3,150,854 678,623 988,517 1 96,446 132,546 - 404,570 5,551,556 1 73,498 
Operating services 4,637,484 844,735 1,002,195 477,067 444,216 62,729 57,312 7,525,708 27,574 
Materials and supplies 15,479,866 75,975 91,820 178,461 1,273 1,205 107,065 15,935,665 6,677 
Travel and other 19,330 672 12,748 14,221 28 84 52,453 99,536 4,526 
Depreciation 1,342,166 418,651 1,512,238 - 152,098 174,991 40,787 3,640,930 5,935 
Claims - - - - - - - - 2,513,362 
Insurance premiums - - - - - - - - 1,912,528 

Total operating expenses 24,629,700 2,018,656 3,607,518 866,165 730,161 239,009 662,187 32,753,397 4,644,100 

Operating Income (loss) (297,330) 742,566 361,475 (615,341) 45,761 (95,827) 300,105 441,408 71,615 

NONOPERATiNG REVENUES/(EXPENSES) 
Investment earnings 63,599 4,614 1,769 - 106 2,505 1,147 73,737 15,262 
Capital grants - - - - - 284,816 - 284,816 -
Interest expense - (52,827) (258,856) - - - - (311,683) -
Amortization - (2,265) (7,076) - - - - (9,341) -

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 63,599 (50,478) (264,163) - 106 287,321 1,147 37,529 15,262 
Income (loss) before contributions 

and trarefers (233,731) 692,068 97,312 (615,341) 45,864 191,494 301,252 478,937 86,877 
Capital contrlbutlore - - 1,141,954 - - - - 1,141,954 -
Trarefets In - - - - - - - - -
Trarefets out (2,363,103) (675,832) (606,537) - - - - (3,647,472) -

Change In net position (2,596,834) 16,256 630,729 (615,341) 45,864 191,494 301,252 (2,026,581) 86,877 
Total net position (deficit) - beginning 30,405,559 10,083,324 17,652,214 - (66,675) 5,857,109 984,307 64,915,838 1,744,203 
Total net position (deficit) - ending $ 27,808,725 $10,099,580 $' 18,282,943 $ (615,341) $ (20,811) $ 6,048,603 $ 1,285,559 $ 62,889,259 $ 1,831,080 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Governmentai 
Activities 

Major Funds Nonmojor Funds internoi 
Eiectric 
System 

Water 
System 

Sewer 
System 

Sports 
Complex Teiecomm 

Airport 
Authority Ambuionce Totoi 

Service 
Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATiNG ACTiViTiES: 
Receipts from aperatlat^ i 
Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 
Claim payments 
Other receipts 

5 20,166,562 
(17,917,537) 

(3,173,401) 

6,288 

$ 1,011,667 $ 
(78,236) 

(680,800) 

13,727 

2,730,601 
(219,544) 
(983,250) 

8,288 

$ 244,860 
(42,782) 

(196,446) 

162 

$ 610,339 
(179,447) 
(130,505) 

$ 137,413 
(322,261) 

$ 472,674 : 
102,068 

(412,801) 

2,270 

5 25,376,116 
(18,657,739) 

(5,577,203) 

30,735 

$ 4,567,677 
(1,972,799) 

(184,810) 
(2,665,949) 

Net cosh provided by operating activities (916,038) 266,358 1,536,095 5,794 300,387 (184848) 164,211 1,171,909 (255,881) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPiTAL 
FiNANCiNG ACTiViTiES: 

Trot^fers In 
Trot^fers out (2,363,103) (675,832) (608,537) 

- - - -
(3,647,472) 

-

Net cosh provided by (used In) noncapital 
financing activities (2,363,103) (675,832) (608,537) (3,647,472) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPiTAL AND RELATED 
FiNANCiNG ACTiViTiES: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Capitol Grants 
DEQ Revolving Loon fund 
Rrindpol paid on debt 

Interest paid on debt 

(601,395) 

(113,000) 

(52,827) 

(1,235,955) 
1,141,953 

266,040 
(1,050,000) 

(258,856) 

- (255,503) (105,414) 
284,816 

(445,046) (2,643,313) 
1,426,769 

266,040 
(1,163,000) 

(311,683) 

-

Net cosh used In cobltol and related financing 
activities (601,395) (165,827) (1,136,818) (255,503) 179,402 (445,046) (2,425,187) 

CASH FLOWS FROM iNVESTiNG ACTiViTiES: 
Purchase of Investments 
Interest and dividends received 

477,360 
63,599 

(5,459) 
4,614 

110,482 
1,769 

-
106 2,505 1,146 

582,383 
73,736 

142,793 
15,261 

Net cosh provided by (used In) Investing activities 540,959 (845) 112,251 103 2,505 1,146 656,119 158,054 

Net Increase (decrease) In cosh and cosh edulvolents (3,339,627) (576,146) (97,009) 5,794 44,987 (2,941) (279,689) (4,244,631) (97,827) 

Cosh and cosh equivalents, beginning of year 4,399,990 600,572 249,802 - 33,335 171,448 1,059,716 6,514,863 1,093,191 

Cosh onq cosh equivalents, enq of year 1,060,363 24,426 152,793 5,794 78,322 168,507 780,027 2,270,232 995,364 

Noncash Item: 

Amortization 2,265 7,076 9641 

The accompanying nates are an Integral part of the financial statements. 



Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Governmentai 
Activities 

Major Funds Nonmojor Funds Internal 
Electric Water Sewer Sports Airport Service 
System System System Complex Telecomm Authority Ambulance Total Funds 

Reconciiiation of operating income (ioss) to net 
cosh provided by (used in) operating activities 

Operating income (loss) $ (297,320) $ 742,566 $ 361,475 $ (615,341) $ 45,761 $ (95,827) $ 300,105 : f 441,409 $ 71,615 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
(loss) to net cosh provided by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation 1,342,166 418,651 1,512,238 - 152,098 174,991 40,787 3,640,930 5,935 

(Increase) Decrease in assets: 
ReceivoPles 138,723 (50,842) (32,349) (5,802) (170,168) (17,014) 8,983 (128,469) (5,051) 

Due from other funds (4,316,773) (1,684,986) (1,194,950) - 4,585 10,615 (496,331) (7,677,840) 23,654 
Inventories (181,266) 9,049 (3,882) - 866 - - (175,233) -
Prepaid itetrs (3,697) (397) (2,265) - - - (1,358) (7,717) -

Increase (Decrease) in lioPilities: 
Accounts payable (8,102) 33,007 62,428 - 15,309 (85,263) (11,826) 5,554 (24,981) 

Accrued liabilities (2,335) - - - (596) - - (2,931) -
Due to other funds 2,410,846 801,090 828,673 626,937 249,895 (173,125) 330,724 5,075,040 (273,342) 

Customers' deposits 20,530 - (2,805) - - 775 - 18,5D0 -
Claims and judgments - - - - - - - - (65,024) 
Compet^oted absences (18,850) (1,780) 7,532 - 2,637 - (6,873) (17,334) 11613 

Total adjustments (618,756) (476,206) 1,174,620 621,135 254,626 (89,021) (135,894) 730,530 (327,496) 

Net cosh provided by operating activities $ (916,088) $ 266,358 $ 1,536,095 $ 5,794 $ 300,387 $ (184648) $ 164,211 : f 1,171,909 $ (255,881) 

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

COMPONENT UNITS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Ruston City 
Judge's 
Office 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Prepaid items 
Due from governmental units 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 

Total assets 

Deferred outflow of resources 

$ 1,707,376 

1,051 
14,105 

468,047 
2,190,579 

23,999 

Ruston City 
Marsfial's 

Office 

$ 277,161 

315 
517 

71,905 
349,898 

Total 

$ 1,984,537 

315 
1,568 

14,105 
539,952 

2,540,477 

23,999 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to governmental units 
Non-current liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 
Net pension liability 
Total liabilities 

Deferred inflow of resources 

5,858 
3,252 

284,290 
293,400 

1,782 

356 

356 

6,214 
3,252 

284,290 
293,756 

1,782 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

468,047 
1,451,349 

$ 1,919,396 

71,905 
277,637 

$ 349,542 

539,952 
1,728,986 

$ 2,268,938 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTOK LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

COMPONENT UNITS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

City Judge: 
Judicial 

City Marshal: 
Judicial 

Program Revenues 
Net (Expenses) Revenues and 

Changes in Net Position 

Expenses 
Charges for 

Services 
On-Behalf 
Revenues 

Ruston City 
Judge's 
Office 

Ruston City 
Marshal's 

Office Total 

$ 786,476 $ 380,965 $ 542,440 $ 136,929 $ $ 136,929 

631,595 1 65,356 448,178 - (18,061) (18,061) 

$ 1,418,071 $ 546,321 $ 990,618 136,929 (18,061) 118,868 

General Revenues: 
Interest earnings 
Miscellaneous 

3,564 227 3,791 

Total general revenues 3,564 227 3,791 

Change in net position 

Net position - beginning 

140,493 

1,778,903 

(17,834) 

367,376 

122,659 

2,146,279 

Net position - ending $ 1,919,396 $ 349,542 $ 2,268,938 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Ruston, Louisiana, (the "City") was incorporated in 1898, under the provisions of the 
Lawrason Act. The City operates under a Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of government. The City's 
major operations include police and fire protection, public works, parks and recreation, utility services, 
and general administrative services. In addition, the City exercises sufficient control over other 
governmental agencies and authorities that are included as part of the City's reporting entity. 

The basic criterion for determining whether another governmental organization should be included in 
a primary governmental unit's reporting entity for financial statements is financial accountability. 
Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing 
body and the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization, or if there is a 
financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the 
primary government should be included in its reporting entity. 

The financial statements present the City of Ruston (the primary government) and its component units. 
The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting entity because of the 
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

The component unit's column in the government-wide financial statements includes the financial data 
of the City's discretely presented component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize 
that they are legally separate from the City. 

Ruston City Judge's Office 

The Ruston City Judge's Office was created by special legislative act. Its jurisdiction includes the 
incorporated area of the City. The City Judge is elected and cannot be removed by City officials. The 
Ruston City Judge's Office is fiscally dependent on the City. The City has the ability to modify or 
approve its budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected by the Judge's 
Office, pursuant to state statute, which are under the control of the Court. The Judge's Office serves 
the citizenry of the City. The financial statements of the Judge's Office included in the accompanying 
financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. 

Ruston Citv Marshal's Office 

The Ruston City Marshal is an elected official. The Ruston City Marshal's Office is fiscally dependent 
on the City. The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which comes from the General 
Fund. Certain funds are collected such as court costs, pursuant to state statute, which are under the 
control of the Ruston City Marshal. The Marshal's Office serves the citizenry of the Parish. The 
financial statements of the Marshal's Office included in the accompanying financial statements are as 
of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. 

Complete financial statements of the individual component units may be obtained at the following 
addresses: 

Ruston City Judge's Office 
P.O. Box 1821 
Ruston. Louisiana 71273-1821 

Ruston City Marshal's Office 
P. O. Box 1582 
Ruston. Louisiana 71273-1582 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 

OTHER RELATED ORGANIZATIONS 

Ruston Housing Authority 

The Authority was created by state statutes and it is legally separate from the City. The Mayor appoints 
the commissioners; however, the City cannot impose its will on the Authority since it does not have the 
ability to modify or approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioners. The 
Authority is fiscally independent and no financial benefit or burden relationship exists with the City. 
Therefore, it is not included in the City's financial statements. 

Lincoln Parish Sales and Use Tax Commission 

The Commission is an independent agency that collects sales taxes. It is legally separate from the City. 
The commission is a jointly governed organization. The City does not retain an ongoing financial 
interest or responsibility for its operations. It is not included in the City's financial statements. 

Union Lincoln Regional Water Supply Initiative 

The Initiative is an independent agency that develops and utilizes any and all alternate water sources 
within Lincoln and Union parishes to reduce the consumption of water from the Sparta Aquifer. The 
Initiative is a joint venture. The City does retain an ongoing financial responsibility for its operations. 
It is not included in the City's financial statements. 

Complete financial statements of the individual other related organizations may be obtained at the 
following addresses: 

Ruston Housing Authority Lincoln Parish Sales and Use Tax Commission 
1615 North Farmerville P.O. Box 863 
Ruston, Louisiana 71270 Ruston, Louisiana 71273-0863 

Union Lincoln Regional Water Supply Initiative 
407 S. Main Street 
Farmerville, Louisiana 71241 

The accounting policies of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governmental units. The accounting policies of the discretely presented 
component units are consistent with those of the City. The following is a summary of the more 
significant policies: 
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a. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements (GWFS) (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary 
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component 
units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Depreciation expense is identified by function and is included 
in the direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term debt of governmental activities 
is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the statement of activities. Interest 
on long-term debt of business-type activities is recorded as direct expenses. Program revenues 
include 1) fees, fines, and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate fund financial statements (FES) are provided for governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the 
FES with nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise and internal service funds being reported 
on an aggregated basis. 

b. MEASUREMENT FOCUS. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING. AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year 
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
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The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period, except for franchise tax revenues which are considered available if collected 
within 90 days and grant revenue if collected within one year. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year in which final approval is received from the Louisiana Tax Commission, at 
which time a valid claim exists, to the extent considered available. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes are considered "measurable" at the time of levy whereas such items as beer taxes 
are considered "measurable" when in the hands of intermediary collecting agencies and are 
recognized as revenue at that time. Substantially all other non-intergovemmental revenues are 
susceptible to accrual and are recognized when earned or the underlying transaction occurs. Sales 
taxes are accrued in the individual funds to which they pertain. For intergovernmental revenues, 
the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements have 
been met. In reimbursement type programs, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or 
project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore revenues are recognized based upon 
the expenditures recorded. In other programs in which monies are virtually unrestricted as to 
purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed 
compliance requirements, the resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if 
the susceptible to accrual criteria are met and all other eligibility requirements are met. 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance/net position, revenues 
expenditures/expenses and other changes in fund balance/net position. The various funds are 
summarized by type in the financial statements. The following funds are used by the City: 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed. 
The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related 
liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental 
funds. The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account 
for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

1968 Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt and use of proceeds of 
the City's sales and use tax. A one-half cent sales tax is dedicated to general operating expenses, 
general capital assets, and waterworks extensions and improvements. 

1985 Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt and use of proceeds of 
the City's sales and use tax. A three-fourths cent sales tax is dedicated to the recreation department, 
streets and drainage, fire protection and police protection. 

1990 Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt and use of proceeds of 
the City's sales and use tax. A one-half cent sales tax is dedicated for police and fire departments 
and drug prevention. 
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2016 Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt and use of proceeds of 
the City's sales and use tax. A three-fourths cent sales tax is dedicated for the debt service payments 
related to the 2016 Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds. 

Ruston FDD #7 Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt of the City's 
restaurant and hotel sales tax in the economic development district created to fund Sports Complex 
Phase II capital projects. 

Cooktown FDD Sales Tax - This special revenue fund accounts for the receipt of the City's sales 
tax collected in the economic development district created to fund the development of the 
Cooktown shopping center. 

1-20 Tax Increment District Sales Tax Fund - This capital projects fund accounts for infrastructure 
improvements along the 1-20 Service Road that are funded from the issuance of sales tax increment 
bonds. 

Moving Ruston Forward Capital Projects Fund — This capital projects fund accounts for numerous 
capital projects that are funded from the issuance of the 2016 Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds. 

Sports Complex Phase II Capital Projects Fund — This capital projects fund accounts for projects 
that will complete the Sports Complex facility. 

Additionally the City reports nonmajor governmental funds in the aggregate. These funds are 
within the following governmental fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds — Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. 

Debt Service Funds — The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources 
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The debt 
service funds receive a portion of all property and sales taxes paid to the City. 

Capital Project Funds — Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by 
proprietary funds.) 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities which are 
similar to those often found in the private sector. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a capital 
maintenance focus; that is, the measurement focus is upon determination of the change in net 
position. The City reports the following proprietary fund types: 

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for activities in which established fees and 
charges are designed to recover its costs, including capital costs such as depreciation and debt 
service. 
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Internal Service Funds — Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of services 
provided by one department of the City to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The 
City maintains four internal service funds for workmen's compensation, health insurance coverage, 
purchasing/warehouse, and general/auto liability insurance. 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Electric System Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City and is responsible for 
providing the residents of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, with electricity. 

Water System Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City and is responsible for 
providing the residents of the City of Ruston, Louisiana with water. 

Sewer System Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City and is responsible for 
providing the residents of the City of Ruston, Louisiana with sewer treatment. 

Sports Complex Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining recreation facility of the City and is 
responsible for providing the residents of the City of Ruston, Louisiana with recreational 
programming. 

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its 
government-wide and business-type activities and its enterprise funds as well as the following 
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict 
with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and 
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the GWFS. Exceptions 
to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the government's 
electric, water, and sewerage function and various other functions of the government. Elimination 
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various 
functions concerned. Transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if 
they involved organizations external to the City as they are exchange transactions are accounted 
for as revenues and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and 
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. Proprietary funds distinguish 
operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise 
funds and the internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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The reserve method is used to account for bad debt expenses on enterprise fund receivables. 
Unbilled service receivables of the General Fund, Electric Fund, Water Fund, and Sewer Fund are 
determined based on October and November billings for electric, water, sewer and refuse services. 
A percentage is calculated based on the read dates for each cycle and then applied to the total 
billings. 

c. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the GWFS and the proprietary funds. Capital assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost for assets where actual historical cost is not available and 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. The City maintains a threshold level for capitalization of capital assets 
except land and construction in progress. 

All land and construction in progress are capitalized regardless of the amount. All other capital 
assets are capitalized utilizing a threshold of $5,000. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs 
that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets are not reported in the governmental FES. 

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service 
demands. Capital assets have not been assigned a salvage value because management feels that the 
salvage value is immaterial. Straight-line depreciation is calculated based on the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 
Buildings 10-50 
Improvements other than buildings 10-50 
Infrastructure 20-75 
Distribution and collection systems 10-50 
Equipment 3-20 

d. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

In the GWFS, and proprietary funds in the FFS, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or 
proprietary funds statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and 
amortized or accreted over the term of the related debt. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. 

In the FFS, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance 
costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the 
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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e. INVESTMENTS 

For all funds, investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. The investments 
at September 30, 2019, were primarily Certificates of Deposit, U.S. government and U.S. 
government agency securities (see note 2 for the City's investment policy). 

f. PREPAID ITEMS 

Prepaid items consist of items such as prepaid insurance and other prepaid expenditures. The cost 
is recorded as an asset at the time such items are purchased in both GWFS and FES. The reserve 
for prepaid items in governmental funds is equal to the amount of prepaid items to indicate a portion 
of the fund balance is not available for future expenditure. 

g. INVENTORIES 

Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out.) The cost is recorded as an asset at the time 
individual inventory items are purchased and charged as an expenditure when used in both GWFS 
and FES. Inventories in the General Fund consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. 
Inventories in the enterprise funds consist of repair materials and spare parts. 

h. REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS 

The Electric System Fund requires deposits for certain customers. These monies are restricted and 
are reported as assets and liabilities. 

i. VACATION AND SICK LEAVE 

City employees are granted paid time off (PTO) time in varying amounts based on years of service. 
Only 40 hours of unused time is allowed to roll forward into a new accrual period. Prior to fiscal 
year 2018, vacation and sick leave were accrued separately, in varying amounts based on years of 
service. Many employees have vacation and sick balances that will be paid out upon termination 
of employment according to the former policy. Employees are paid for unused sick leave up to a 
maximum of six months upon retirement. Unpaid PTO time and vacation time for all employees, 
and sick leave for those employees eligible for retirement benefits has been accrued. All other sick 
leave is recorded as an expenditure when paid. The estimated liability for unused vacation for 
governmental funds is recorded in the GWFS. Vacation leave of governmental funds is recorded 
as an expenditure when paid. Accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an 
expense and liability of those funds as it is earned by the employees. 

j. PENSION PLANS 

The State of Louisiana has three pension plans which cover substantially all employees of the City 
who meet certain length of service requirements (see note 8 for the details of these plans). 

k. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for 
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use 
is limited by applicable bond covenants. 
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1. FUND EQUITY 

GASB Statement No. 54 establishes standards for five fund balance classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints 
imposed upon the use of resources reported in governmental funds. The nonspendable fund balance 
classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable 
form - prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four classifications: restricted, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either 
(a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the aldermen - the government's highest 
level of decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose 
unless the City aldermen remove the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the 
commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing 
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 
requirements. 

Assigned Fund Balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City's "intent" 
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City aldermen and 
management have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund 
balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in 
governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are 
neither restricted nor committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. 
It is used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned, and 
unassigned - in order as needed. 

m. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

All outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other funds in the fund financial 
statements. There is no activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements at the end of the fiscal year. Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the GWFS as internal 
balances. 
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n. PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property when the assessment is approved by the 
Louisiana Tax Commission. Property taxes levied are based on the assessed value of property as 
listed on the previous December 31. Taxes are normally levied in November of each year and are 
due on or before December 31. A revaluation of all real property must be made every four years. 
The last revaluation date was January 1, 2016. 

o. GRANTS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 

Federal and state governmental agencies represent an important source of supplementary funding 
to finance housing, employment and construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the 
community. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General Fund, special 
revenue funds, capital projects funds, and enterprise funds. The grants normally specify the purpose 
for which the funds may be used and are subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative. 

p. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments 
(including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents. 

q. SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS 

The City is self-insured for workmen's compensation coverage and medical insurance for 
employees. Self-insured claims are recorded in the City's internal service funds in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 10. 

Incurred, but not reported, claims are recorded as liabilities in the Insurance Fund. An estimate for 
these claims is provided by a third party administrator based on historical experience. 

r. ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

At September 30,2019, the City has cash and cash equivalents (bookbalances net of overdrafts) totaling 
$11,212,521. 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned 
by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance 
must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 
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These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank 
that is mutually acceptable by both parties. Cash and cash equivalents (bank balances) at September 
30, 2019, are secured as follows: 

Bank Balances S 12.742.610 

Federal Deposit Insurance $ 2,000,000 
Pledged Securities (Uncollateralized) 32.454.760 

Total S34.454.760 

Governmental Funds Cash and Equivalents $ 7,580,045 
Enterprise Funds Cash and Equivalents 2,637,112 
Internal Service Funds Cash and Equivalents 995.364 

Total Book Balances Sll.212.521 

The City's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of custodial credit risk 
assumed by the City at September 30, 2019. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or 
registered or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investments with securities held by the counterparty's trust 
department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments 
with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name. 

CATEGORY Carrying 
\ 2 3 Amount 

& Fair Value 
U.S. government and U.S. 

government agency securities $5,050,815 $ - $ - $ 5,050,815 

Louisiana Asset Management Pool 14.544.785 

Totallnvestments 19,595,600 

Total Deposits 11.212.521 

Total cash, cash equivalents, & investments, including restricted cash and 
investments $30.808.121 

The investments in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool are not categorized because they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
("LAMP"), a local government investment pool, is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. While LAMP is not required to be a 
registered investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, its investment policies are 
similar to those established by Rule 2-a7, which governs registered money market funds. The LAMP 
portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are 
authorized to invest. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not 
more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair value 
of investments is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any variances between amortized cost and 
market value. For purposes of determining participants' shares, investments are valued at amortized 
cost. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account 
balances. LAMP issues a publicly available financial report. That report may be obtained by writing 
the Board of Directors, 228 St. Charles Avenue, New Orleans, Louisiana 70130, or by calling (504) 
525-5161. 
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Discretely Presented Component Units - Deposits 

All deposits of the component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year ends, 
all deposits are insured or collateralized with securities held in the component unit's name by its agent 
(the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank.) The cash and equivalent securities have 
a fair value of $2,170,534 at September 30, 2019. 

3. PROPERTY TAXES 

The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries. Property 
taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Lincoln Parish Assessor and approved 
by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. Total assessed value was $210,298,418 and $207,257,414 
in 2019 and 2018, respectively. The distribution of the City's levy (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) 
was as follows for 2019 and 2018: 

General Fund 
Recreation Tax 

Total 

Levy 
2019 
5.24 
2.92 
8.16 

2018 
5.24 
2.92 
8.16 

4. RLCLIV ABELS 

Receivables as of September 30, 2019, for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor and internal 
service funds, including allowances for uncollectible accounts, are outlined below: 

Governmental activities: 
General 
1968 Sales Tax 
1985 Sales Tax 
1990 Sales Tax 
2016 Sales Tax 
Ruston EDD #1 
Cooktown EDD 
Nonmajor governmental funds 

Total governmental activities 

Customers 

$ 204,412 

204.412 

Taxes 

610,815 
391,736 
280,815 
421,220 
152,576 

3,342 
776.075 

S2.636..579 

Other 

$1,240,413 

10.734 

Allowance for 
Uncollectible 

Accounts 

($ 362,383) 

$1.251.1479 362.383') 

Net 
Receivable 

$1,082,442 
610,815 
391,736 
280,815 
421,220 
152,576 

3,342 
786.809 

$3.729.755 

Business-type activities: 
Electric System $3,284,879 
Water System 478,599 
Sewer System 755,548 
Sports Complex 5,802 
Nonmajor business-type funds 252.505 
Total business-type activities $4.777.333 

($2,029,135) 
(320,412) 
(588,302) 

(29.543) 
(%2.961.392) 

$1,255,744 
158,187 
167,246 

5,802 
222.962 

$1.809.941 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
September 30, September 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 2019 
Governmental activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 17,469,168 $ 353,198 $ $ 17,822,366 
Conshuction in progress 79.573.331 37.944.881 (4.943.873) 112.574.339 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 97.042.499 38.298.079 (4.943.873) 130.396.705 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 12,634,378 509,290 - 13,143,668 
Improvements other than buildings 27,453,426 3,650,244 - 31,103,670 
Equipment 18,415,602 1,841,217 (9,199) 20,247,619 
Infrastructure 23.275.962 _ _ 23.275.962 
Total capital assets being depreciated 81.779.368 6.000.751 (9.199) 87.770.919 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings (4,562,105) (273,851) - (4,835,956) 
Improvements other than buildings (6,482,114) (620,730) - (7,102,844) 
Equipment (15,523,334) (435,038) 9,199 (15,949,173) 
Infrastructure r9.311.15n r511.190') - (9.822.341) 
Total accumulated depreciation r35.878.704') ri.840.809') 9.199 (37.710.314) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 45.900.664 4.159.951 _ 50.060.605 
Governmental activities capital assets, net SI 42 943 163 S42 458 021 rS4 943 873) SI 80 457 310 

Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, their capital assets 
are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. 

Construction in progress for governmental activities includes of $24,416,227 for 1-20 Infrastructure 
projects; $50,873,963 for the Sports Complex and Phase II projects; $28,673,769 for sheets and bridge 
projects; $6,772,380 for water system improvements and $1,838,000 for the Rock Island Greenway 
project. 
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Business-type activities Business-type activities 
Balance Balance 

S^tember30, S^tember 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 2019 

Electric S>'stein 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 627,501 $ - $ - $ 627.501 

Construction in progress 3.612.827 _ (2.439.4741 1,173,353 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 4 240 328 _ (2.439 4741 1.800854 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 7317,632 - - 7317,632 
System Improvements 43,301,045 3,014,140 (31,567) 46,283,618 

Equipment 21.226.299 26.729 (46.8311 21.206.197 

Total capital assets being depreciated 71.844.976 3.040.869 (78.3981 74.807.447 

Less accumulated depreciation; 
Buildings (2,659,554) (131,289) - (2,790,843) 
System Improvements (25,108,638) (830,403) 31,567 (25,907,474) 

Equipment f21.006.5571 r380.4741 46.831 (21,340,200) 

Total accumulated depreciation r48.774.7491 fl.342.1661 78.398 (50.038.5171 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 23.070.227 1.698.703 24.768.930 

Electric System capital assets, net S 27310 555 S 1 698 703 % (2 439 4741 S 26.569.784 

Construction in progress for the electric system consisted of $717,320 for the Distribution System major 
improvements and $456,033 for Streetscape Phase VI Improvements. 

Balance Balance 

September 30, September 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 2019 

Water System 
Coital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 75,070 $ $ $ 75,070 

Construction in progress 23.210 _ (18.5731 4,637 

Total coital ^sets not being depreciated 98.280 _ (18.5731 79.707 

Coital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 139,934 - - 139,934 
System Improvements 17,537,619 - - 17,537,619 

Equipment 839.988 . _ 839.988 

Total ctqjital assets being depreciated 18.517.541 . . 18.517.541 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings (141,387) (3,163) - (144,550) 
System Improvements (10,291,322) (396,499) - (10,687,821) 

Equipment 1908.0931 (18.9891 _ (927,082) 

Total accumulated depreciation fll.340.8021 (418.6511 . (11,759,453) 

Total capital assets being d^)reciated, net 7.176.739 (418.6511 6.758.088 

Water System capital assets, net J 7275.019 % (418 6511 S (1857.31 S 6837795 

Construction in progress for the water system consisted of $4,637 for the Streetscape planning and 
development of water distribution system. 
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Equipment 
Total coital assets being deju'eciated 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings 
System Improvements 
Equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Total c^tal assets being deju'eciated, net 

Sewer System capital assets, net 

Balance Balance 

September 30, September 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 2019 

Sewer System 
Capital assets not being depreciated; 

Land $ 218,801 ; $ $ $ 218,801 

Construction in progress 228,277 193.251 (88,564) 332.964 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 447,078 193.251 (88,564) 551.765 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 151,353 - - 151,353 
System Improvemaits 19,583,593 - - 19,583,593 

29.919.334 
49.654.280 

(94,034) 
(15,445,248) 

1.141.954 
1,141,954 

(4,506) 
(583,017) 

31,061.288 
50,796.234 

(98,540) 
(16,028,265) 
(11,565,925) 

(26.180.4921 (1.512.2381 . (27.692.7301 

23.473.788 (3702841 23.103,504 

S 23 920 866 S : (177 0331 S (88 5641 1 J 23.655.269 

Construction in progress consisted of $332,964 for the North Main Inqirovement project. 

TelecommuDicatioDS System 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Equipment 
Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Total coital assets being d^reciated, net 

Telecommunications System capital assets, net 

Balance 

S^tember 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 

Balance 

September 30, 

2019 

S 211.770 $ - $ - S 211.770 

2.871.543 255.503 3.127.046 

2.871.543 255.503 3.127.046 

(383.3361 (152.0981 (535.4341 

(383.3361 (152.0981 (535.4341 

2.488.207 103.405 2.591.612 

I 2 699 977 S 103 405 S - S 2 803 382 

Construction in progress for the telecommunications system consisted of $211,770 for installations of 
telecommunications throughout the City. 
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Balance Balance 

September 30, September 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 2019 

Airport ADthorit}' 

Capital assets not being defweciated: 
Land $ 651,214 $ 263,684 $ - $ 914,898 

Construction in progress 1.256.526 750.166 (751.821) 1,254,871 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1.907.740 1.013.850 (751.821) 2.169.769 

Capital assets being depreciated; 
Buildings 1,094,626 - - 1,094,626 

Runways, aprons, and taxiways 8,866,381 488,054 - 9,354,435 

Equipment 231.239 231.239 

Total capital assets being depreciated 10.192.246 488.054 _ 10.680.300 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Buildings (293,384) (17,936) - (311,320) 

Runways, aprons, and taxiways (5,798,880) (153,266) - (5,952,146) 

Equipment (307.982) (3.789) _ (311,771) 

Total accumulated depreciation (6.400.246) (174.991) (6.575.237) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3.792.000 313.063 4.105.063 

Airport Authority coital assets, net S 5 699 740 S 1 326913 J; (751 821) % 6 274 832 

Construction in progress consisted of $1,092,171 for the Runway and Taxi extension project and 
$162,700 for the Airport Master Plan project. 

Balance Balance 

September 30, September 30, 

2018 Additions Retirements 2019 

Ambulance Fund 

Coital ^sets being depreciated: 

Equipment $ 1,212,408 $ 445,046 $ - $ 1,657,454 

Less accumulated depreciation (1.123.885) (40.787) _ (1,164,672) 

Ambulance Fund coital assets, net S 88 523 S 404 259 % - S 492 782 
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Balance 

September 30, 

2018 Ad<Utions Retirements 

Balance 

September 30, 

2019 

Totil Basiness-type activities capital assets 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,572,586 : S 263,684 $ - 3 ; 1,836,270 

Construction in progress 5,332,610 943.417 (3,298,432) 2,977,595 

Total coital assets not being depreciated 6.905.196 1.207.101 (3.298.432) 4.813.865 

Cq)ital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 8,703,545 - - 8,703,545 
System Improvements 80,422,257 3,014,140 (31,567) 83,404,830 
Runways, aprons, and taxiways 8,866,381 488,054 - 9,354,435 

Equipment 56.300.811 1.869.232 (46.831) 58.123.212 

Total cq>ital assets being d^neciated 154.292.994 5.371.426 (78.398) 159.586.022 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings (3,188,359) (156,894) - (3,345,253) 
System Improvements (50,845,208) (1,809,919) 31,567 (52,623,560) 

Runways, aprons, and taxiwajfs (5,798,880) (153,266) - (5,952,146) 

Equipment (34,371,063)'' (1,520,851) 46,831 (35,845,084) 

Total accumulated depreciation ("94.203.5101 f3.640.9301 78.398 (97.766.042) 

Total coital assets, being d^reciated, net 

Business-type activities csmital assets, net 

60.089.484 1.730.496 61.819.980 Total coital assets, being d^reciated, net 

Business-type activities csmital assets, net S 66 994 680 ! S 2937 597 S (3 298 432) f R 66 633 846 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works, including depreciation of general 

infrastructure assets 
Recreation 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Electric System 
Water System 
Sewer System 
Telecommunications System 
Airport Authority 
Ambulance 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 

$ 206,307 
256,325 

1,155,077 
223,099 

SI.840.809 

$1,342,166 
418,651 

1,512,238 
152,098 
174,991 
40,787 

$3.640.930 
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6. SALES TAX 

The various Sales Tax Funds account for the collection and distribution of City sales and use tax to 
other funds of the City. Sales tax rates for each fund are as follows: 

Fund Rate 
1968 One-half cent 
1985 Three-quarter cent 
1990 One-half cent 
2016 Three-quarter cent 

Ruston EDD# 1 One and three-quarter cent 
Cooktown FDD One-half cent 

For financial reporting purposes, sales taxes are recorded as revenue in the individual funds which 
collect the sales tax and are recorded as transfers to and from the operations or projects for which the 
taxes were levied and as approved for expenditure by ordinance of the Council. 

The 1968 one-half cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in the 
administration and collection of sales taxes. Certain contributions may be made from these funds. After 
these payments, the remaining amount is payable to the General Fund. 

The 1985 three-quarter cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in the 
administration and collection of sales taxes. Payments are made on a monthly basis to the Ruston Parks 
and Recreation Fund of up to seven percent of the annual net proceeds for construction, acquiring, 
improving and/or operating recreation facilities and programs. After these payments, the remaining 
amount is payable to the General Fund for public works, fire protection, and police protection. 

The 1990 one-half cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in the 
administration and collection of sales taxes. After these payments, the remaining amount is payable to 
the General Fund for fire protection and police protection. 

The 2016 three-quarter cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in the 
administration and collection of sales taxes. After these payments, the remaining amount is dedicated 
and used to construct, improve, maintain, and/or repair public streets, related drainage, and facilities 
for the provision of water and sewer services; for economic development; and to acquire, construct, 
maintain, operate and/or equip a multi-sports recreation complex, an animal shelter and related 
property, facilities and utilities. 

The Ruston EDD#1 one and three-quarter sales tax collected in the Ruston Economic Development 
District #1 is used to retire the debt issuance that will fund the Sports Complex Phase II Capital Projects. 

The Cooktown EDD one-half cent sales tax collected in the Cooktown Economic Development District 
is used to fund the costs of development of the Cooktown Shopping Center. 
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7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Revenue bonds payable $66,970,000 $10,000,000 ($3,190,000) $73,780,000 $3,265,000 

Compensated absences 1,787,862 46,390 - 1,834,252 458,563 
Net pension liability 26,669,706 1,894,295 - 28,564,001 
Post-employment benefit 

obligation 15.999.823 6.470.579 (180.342) 22.290.060 ^ 
Total Governmental activities 

long-term liabilities $111.427.391 $18.411.264 ($3.370.342) $126.468.313 $3.723.563 

Business-type activities: 
Electric System: 

Compensated absences $ 353.665 $ ($ 18.649) $ 335.016 $ 56.919 

Water System: 
DHH revolving loan $ 1,462,388 $ - ($ 113,000) $1,349,388 $ 112,000 
Compensated absences 21.813 ^ (1.779) 20.034 3.406 

Water System long-term 
liabilities $ 1.484.201 $ ($ 114.779) $1.369.422 $ 117.008 

Sewer System: 
Refunding sewer bonds $ 9,180,000 $ - ($1,050,000) $8,130,000 $1,075,000 
DEQ revolving loan - 266,040 - 266,040 
Compensated absences 114.393 7.532 ^ 121.925 20.727 

Sewer System long-term 
liabilities $ 9.294.393 $273.572 ($1.050.000) $8.517.965 $1.105.481 

Telecommunications System: 
Compensated absences $ 3.971 $ 2.041 $ $ 6.012 $ 1.022 

Ambulance Fund: 
Compensated absences $ 79.480 $ ($ 6.873) $ 72.607 $ 12.343 

Total Business-type activities 
long-term liabilities: 
Compensated absences $ 573,322 $ 9,573 ($ 27,301) $ 555,394 $ 94,417 
DHH revolving loan 1,462,388 - (113,000) 1,349,388 112,000 
Refunding sewer bonds 9,180,000 - (1,050,000) 8,130,000 1,075,000 
DEQ revolving loan - 266.040 ^ 266.040 -

Total Business-type activities 
long-term liabilities $11.215.710 $275.613 ($1.190.301) $10.300.823 $1.281.417 

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for 
them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. For the governmental activities, 
the balance of compensated absences is generally liquidated by the General Fund. 
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Bonds payable at September 30, 2019, were comprised of the following issuances: 

Outstanding at 
September 30, 2019 

Governmental Activities: 

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds 
$34,000,000 - 2017 Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bonds dated 
April 20, 2017, interest at 3.0% payable in annual installments of 
$1,740,000 to $2,270,000 through September 1, 2033. $28,355,000 

Sales & Use Tax Revenue Bonds 
$38,995,000 - 2016 Sales & Use Tax Revenue Bonds dated 
Septemberl3, 2016, interest at 2.00% - 5.00% payable in annual 
installments of $810,000 to $2,985,000 through June 1, 2036. $35,425,000 

Sales & Use Tax Revenue Bonds 
$20,000,000 - 2019 Sales & Use Tax Revenue Bonds dated April 
1 2019, interest 3.075% payable in annual installments of 
$2,250,000 to $2,770,000 dirough December 1, 2028. $10,000,000 

Business-type Activities: 

DHH Revolving Loan 
$2,334,000 2009 Water Revenue Bonds dated October 29, 2009, 
interest at 3.45%, due in annual installments of $92,000 to 
$145,000 through October 1, 2030. $1,349,388 

Refunding Bonds 
$14,870,000 2012 Refunding Sewer Bonds dated July 24, 2012, 
interest at 2.75%, due in annual installments of $1,000,000 to 
$1,250,000 through October 1, 2026. $8,130,000 

DEO Clean Drinking Water Revolving Loan 

$6,000,000 2018 Utility Revenue Bonds dated October 18, 2018, 
interest at 0.95%, due in annual installments of $270,000 to 
$330,000 through October 1, 2039. $ 266,040 
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The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of September 30, 2019, including interest 
requirements were as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 
Year ending 

September 30: 
2020 $3,265,000 $2,975,054 $ 1,158,000 $ 274,277 $ 7,672,331 
2021 3,365,000 3,081,250 1,455,040 245,380 8,146,670 
2022 5,720,000 2,945,706 1,222,000 214,601 10,102,307 
2023 5,915,000 2,741,296 1,249,000 181,878 10,087,175 
2024 6,120,000 2,529,338 1,283,000 147,091 10,079,428 

2025-2028 19,045,000 7,833,884 2,953,388 223,228 30,055,500 
2029-2033 21,810,000 4,919,039 425,000 12,358 27,166,397 
2034-2039 8.540.000 867.750 _ _ 9.407.750 

$73,780,000 $27,893,317 $9,745,428 $1,298,813 $112,717,558 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City 
believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

The amount of long-term debt that can be incurred by the City is limited by state statute. State law 
allows a maximum of 10% of the assessed valuation of bonded debt for any one purpose or 35% of the 
total assessed value for general purposes. The City assessed property value at December 31, 2019, was 
$210,298,418. The maximum debt allowable for any one purpose and total general obligation debt 
allowable by state law as of December 31, 2019, is $21,029,842 and $73,604,446, respectively. The 
City currently has no general bonded debt outstanding. 

8. MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER COST-SHARING BENEFIT PLANS - PUBLIC EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Emplovees' Retirement Svstem (MERS) 

Plan Description - Substantially all full-time employees, except police and firemen of the City of 
Ruston, are covered under the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, (the "System") 
a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system, controlled and administered by 
the Board of Trustees of the System. The System is mandatory for all employees who are employed on 
a permanent basis working at least 35 hours per week. Benefits are established by State statutes. The 
System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing the Board of Trustees, 7937 Office 
Park Boulevard., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (800) 820-1137. 

Funding Policv - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 9.50% of their annual 
compensation. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are 
determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The current actuarially determined rate is 27.75% of annual 
compensation. The City's contributions to the System for the years ended September 30, 2019, 2018, 
and 2017 were $1,851,265, $1,633,860, and $1,464,167, respectively, equal to die required 
contributions for each year. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $16,062,737 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability for the MERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. 

The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term 
share of contributions to the MERS pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the City's proportion was 3.8439%, 
which was an increase of 0.2607% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. 

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized net pension expense of $3,019,451 plus 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $506,647. 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $391,914 

Changes in assumptions 405,921 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 1,593,077 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 788,567 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 516.875 

Total $3.304.440 $391.914 

The City reported a total of $516,875 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2019, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year MERS 

2020 $1,380,272 
2021 678,204 
2022 203,443 
2023 133.732 
Total $2,395,651 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of September 30, 2019 is as follows: 

June 30. 2019 

Entry Age Normal 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 3 years 

Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of investment expense, including inflation 

Projected Salary Increases 

Mortality 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

1 to 4 years of service- 6.4% (2.5% inflation, 3.9% merit) 
More than 4 years of service- 4.5% (2.5% inflation, 2.0% merit) 

Pub G-2010(B) - Employee Table for active members (set equal to 
120% for males and females, each adjusted using their respective male 
and female MP 2018 scales) 

Pub NS-2010(B)-Disabled Retiree Table for Disabled Annuitants (set 
equal to 120% for males and females with the full generational MP 
2018 scales) 

Pub G-2010(B)- Healthy Retiree Table for healthy annuitants (set equal 
to 120% for males and females, each adjusted using their respective 
male and female MP 2018 scales) 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on benefits 
currently being paid by the System and includes previously granted cost 
of living increases. The present values do not include provisions for 
potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
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plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 
Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-
point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

Current 
1.0% Discount 1.0% 

MERS Decrease Rate Increase 
Rates 6.0% 7.0% 8.0% 
CORShare-NPL $20,942,936 $16,062,737 $11,936,682 

Statewide Firefighter's Retirement System (SFRS) 

Plan Description - The City of Ruston contributes to the Statewide Firefighter's Retirement System of 
Louisiana, a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Firefighter's Retirement System. SFRS covers firefighters employed by any municipality, parish, or 
fire protection district of the State of Louisiana under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 
11:2251 dirough 2269 effective January 1, 1980. Benefits are established by State statutes. The SFRS 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing the Board of Trustees, Firefighters' 
Retirement System, 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 or by calling (225) 925-
4060. 

Funding Policy - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 10% of their annual 
compensation. For the year ended September 30, 2019, The City is required to contribute 27.75% of 
annual compensation excluding overtime but including State supplemental pay. As provided by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation 
and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The 
City's contributions to SFRS for die years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 were $626,153, 
$537,893, and $587,466, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $6,184,669 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the FRS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's 
long-term share of contributions to the FRS pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the City's proportion was 0.9876%, 
which was an increase of 0.03% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018. For the year ended 
September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $1,202,904 less employer's amortization 
of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate 
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share of contributions, $20,315. 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
Employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

415.902 

562.654 

170.118 

168.359 
$1.317.033 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 
$446,127 

450 

148.677 

$595.254 

The City reported a total of $168,359 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2019, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year SFRS 

2020 $207,025 
2021 (34,381) 
2022 166,603 
2023 138,735 
2024 31,109 
2025 44.329 
Total $553,420 

54 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of September 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Expected Remaining Service 7 years 
Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 7.15%, net of investment expense, including 
inflation 

Projected salary increases 4.50% - 14.75% per year based on years of 
service 

Mortality RP-2000 Employee Table for active members 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table for 
Disabled Annuitants 

RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Table for healthy 
annuitants 

Cost of Living Adjustments Only those previously granted 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-
point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems: 

Current 
1.0% Discount 1.0% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
FRS 

Rates 6.15% 7.15% 8.15% 
COR Share-NPL $8,955,820 $6,184,669 $3,858,777 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) 

Plan Description - The City of Ruston contributes to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement 
System Pension Plan, a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by 
the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System. MPERS covers any full-time police officer, 
empowered to make arrests, employed by any municipality of the State and engaged in law 
enforcement, earning at least $375 per month excluding state supplemental pay, or an elected Chief of 
Police whose salary is at least $100 per month, and any employee of this system may participate in the 
MPERS. Benefits are established by State statutes. The MPERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be 
obtained by writing the Board of Trustees of the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 
7722 Office Park Boulevard., Suite 200, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 or by calling (800) 443-4248. 

Funding Policv - State statute requires plan members to contribute 10% of their annual compensation. 
For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City was required to contribute 32.50% of annual 
compensation excluding overtime but including State supplemental pay. As provided by Louisiana 
Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are 
subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's 
contributions to MPERS for the years ended September 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 were $695,315, 

,262, and $656,807, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $6,316,595 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the MPERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the City's long-term share of contributions to the MPERS pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the City's 
proportion was 0.6955%, which was a decrease of 0.0526% from its proportion measured as of June 
30. 2018. 
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For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $1,089,832 less 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, $36,705. 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 13,254 $ 194,333 

Changes of assumptions 410,379 

Net differences between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 353,970 

Change in proportion and differences between 
Employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 308,994 311,146 

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 170.028 ^ 

Total $1.256.625 $ 505.479 

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

The City reported a total of $170,028 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2019, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year MPERS 

2020 $401,977 
2021 26,344 
2022 50,341 
2023 102.456 
Total $581,118 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of September 30, 2019, is as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 4 years 

Investment Rate of Return 7.125%, net of investment expense 

Projected Salary Increases 4.25% - 9.75% based on years of service 

Mortality RP-2000 Employee Table for active members 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table for 
Disabled Annuitants 

RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Table for healthy 
annuitants 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.125%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension hability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-
point higher than the current rate used by each of the Retirement Systems; 

MPERS 
Rates 
COR Share-NPL 

1.0% 
Decrease 

6.125% 
$8,801,099 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 

7.125% 
$6,316,595 

1.0% 
Increase 

8.125% 
$4,232,346 

9. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES 

a. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Interfund balances at September 30, 2019, were as follows: 

DUETOffnnaiFu>nK 

Geocral SulnTu 1-20 TTD 
Moving 
Rualoci Konsaajur Elecnk Wsler Sewer Spnts bitesssBl 

MJE FROM OTHER FUNDS Find Funds Find FnwBrd GovCTcmenul Svsloa System Svslesn Clxnplex Tefeocm Anofi Ambuhnee Sensct Total 

Otnera] Fund % 840,127 S 2U,762 5207,478 5 S 127.736 5 5 1,143,760 $1.115477 $626,937 $ 253.877 $ 3.629 $443,954 $ 10.989 $ 5.067.526 

SalK Tax funda . 1.831.067 447.432 . . . . 2J78.499 
lOOTTOFuod 178,9«7 817,231 31 444 - 996,693 
Mo\'iag RuaUm Fcr^.'sd 718,423 - . . . . . 718,423 
SpnD Complex Phue U . . 1,000,000 • • . • 1,000,000 
Noem^ aovenDcatal 2,927 33,977 - - . - - 36,904 
Ffeftric SysttiM 3.845.117 - 11.923 108.130 909 2.886.216 <U74 iw.4n 7.109.115 
Water Sa'xtcm 14,123 - 2.752 1436 - 4,875.874 1,801 - 4.896.386 
SewCT Svalem 357 . 128,248 506 3,483,122 11,170 . . 3,623,403 
Aspoil 15,550 - 60,828 - 2,539 . 78,917 

AmbuluiR 5,495 . . - . 50,000 150,000 25,000 2404X10 - 490,495 

Intenul Service 499,922 . . 21J03 78.834 22.326 3757! 6.408 1S0J»8 2JS9 7.316 826.737 
S6.12I,02S 52.I58.X(M 54IU29 $2,375,135 J 149.978 5 8.437.83D $ 1.227J136 $1,303,248 $626,937 $3.n6J55 $475.17! $446,343 $213,782 $27,123,098 

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfiind goods and services 
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occiur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 
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b. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Transfers for the year ended September 30, 2019, were as follows: 

TRANSFERS OUT 
General Fund 
1968 Sales Tax 
1985 Sales Tax 
1990 Sales Tax 
2016 Sales Tax 
Electric System 
Water System 
Sewer System 
Total transfers 

TRANSFERS IN 

General Fund 
S 

3,110,697 
4,400,023 
3,110,697 

2,363,103 
675,832 
608.537 

Noomajor 
Governmental 

Funds 
MRF Coital 
Projects Fund Total 

$ $ 2,105,437 

300,000 

$ 2,105,437 
3,110,697 
4,700,023 
3,110,697 
1,933,735 
2,363,103 

675,832 
608,537 

$ 14.268.889 $ 300.000 $ 4.039.172 S 18.608.061 

1,933,735 

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect 
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to 
debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service 
payments become due, (3) use unrestricted revenue collected in the General Fund to finance 
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, 
and (4) pay the General Fund in lieu of property and sales taxes and services performed by 
other departments. 

c. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET 

For those funds for which a budget to actual comparison was made, actual expenditures on a 
budgetary basis exceeded budgeted expenditures on a code level basis as follows: 

Fund: Budget 
General Fund: 

Fines and Forfeiture Revenue $828,600 

General Government: 
Executive Operating Services 917,394 
Economic Development 260,782 

Public Safety: 
Probation 115,000 

Actual on a 
budgetary 

basis 

S 443,742 

Negative 
variance 

($384,858) 

1,680,686 (763,293) 
664,743 (403,962) 

127,193 (12,193) 

The variance in fines and forfeitures was an indirect result of the 2019 tornado event. Despite 
these variances, the City complied with the Local Government Budget act in that no fund in 
total experienced a 5% increase/decrease in revenue or expense, respectively, for the year 
ended September 30, 2019. See additional analysis of budget variances within the MD&A 
section of this report. 
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d. ON BEHALF OF PAYMENTS 

The City makes certain payments on behalf of the Ruston City Judge's Office and the Ruston 
City Marshal's Office as part of normal operations and considered in the annual budget process. 
The on behalf of payments are shown in detail below: 

Payee Amount 
Ruston City Judge's Office: 

Salaries and Employee Benefits $368,720 

Ruston City Marshal's Office: 
Salaries and Employee Benefits 271.427 

Total On Behalf payments $640.147 

10. FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Federal and State governmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding to 
finance housing, employment, construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the community. 
These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, and 
Enterprise Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under the 
related grant. The grants normally specify the purpose for which the funds may be used and are audited 
annually under the single audit as mandated by the Single Audit Act of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 200, Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

11. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description - The City of Ruston (the City) provides certain continuing health care and life 
insurance benefits for its retired employees. The City of Ruston's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a 
single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. The authority to establish and/or 
amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Codification Section P52 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not 
Provided Through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteria—Defined Benefit. 

Benefits Provided — Medical benefits are provided through a self-insured medical plan and are made 
available to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered by one of three retirement 
systems: first, the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility 
(D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of 
service; second, the Municipal Police Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility 
(D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 years of 
service; or, age 55 and 12 years of service; and, third, the Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana, 
whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; 
age 50 and 20 years of service; or, age 55 and 12 years of service. 
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Life insurance coverage in varying amounts is provided to retirees based on a blended rate (for all 
retired combined). Retiree insurance coverage amounts are $20,000, reduced to $10,000 at age 70 and 
to $1,000 at age 75. 

Employees covered by benefit terms — At September 30, 2019, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 62 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 262 

324 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability of $22,290,060 was measured as of September 30, 2019 and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs - The total OPEB liability in the September 30, 2019 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inflation 
Prior Discount rate 4.18% 
Discount rate 2.66%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 5.5% annually 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal 
bond index as of September 30, 2019, the end of the applicable measurement period. Mortality rates 
were based on the RP-2000 Table without projection with 50%/50% unisex blend. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of 
ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from October 1, 2009 to September 30, 2019. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at September 30, 2018 $15,999,823 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 221,500 
Interest 665,023 
Difference between expected and actual experience 332,256 
Change in assumptions 5,251,800 
Benefit payments and net transfers (180.342) 

Net changes 6.290.237 

Balance at September 30, 2019 $22.290.060 
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate — The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.66%) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(3.66%) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(1.66%) Rate (2.66%) (3.66%) 

Total OPEB liability $27,115,425 $22,290,060 $18,609,738 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates — The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be 
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend 1.0% Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB liability $18,604,397 $22,290,060 $27,046,472 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB — For the year ended September 30, 2019, die City recognized OPEB expense of $1,229,322. 
At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual $ 302,051 ($ 243,566) 
experience 

Changes in assumptions 4.774.364 (1.404.863) 
Total $5.076.415 ($1.648.429^ 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending 
September 30: 

2020 $ 342,799 
2021 342,799 
2022 342,799 
2023 342,799 
2024 342,799 

Thereafter 1.713.995 
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City of Ruston 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios for the 

For the Year Ended September 30,2019 

2018 2019 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost s 253,617 S 221,500 

Interest 615,554 665,023 

Changes of benefit terms - -

Differences between expected and actual experience (292,278) 332,256 

Changes of assumptions (1,685,835) 5,251,800 

Benefit payments (170,940) (180,342) 

Net char^ in total UPS liability (1,279,882) 6,290,237 

Total UPEB liability- beginning 17,279,705 15,999,823 

Total OPEB liability-ending (a) s 15,999,823 s 22,290,060 

Covered-employee payroll s 10,721,510 s 11,150,370 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of 

c o vered -em p 1 oy ee p ay ro 11 149.23% 199.90% 

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefit Changes: None None 

Changes of Assumptions: 

Discount Rate: 4.18% 2.66% 

This schediJe is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years wil be dispbyed as they beowne available. 
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction Projects 

There are certain construction projects in progress at September 30, 2019. The City issued $34,000,000 
of Sales Tax Increment Revenue Bonds in 2017 for the purpose of providing engineering and 
construction expenditures related to the 1-20 Service Road Projects. The City also issued $38,995,000 
of Sales and Use Tax Revenue Bonds in 2016 for the purpose of providing infrastructure improvements 
City wide. In 2019, the City issued $20,000,000 in Sales Tax Revenue Bonds to fund the construction 
of Sports Complex Phase II capital projects. From these debt issuances and from fund balances, the 
City has spent $24,416,227 for 1-20 Infrashncture projects; $50,873,963 for die Sports Complex and 
Phase II projects; $28,673,769 for streets and bridge projects; $6,772,380 for water system 
improvements and $1,838,000 for the Rock Island Greenway project. 

Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains commercial 
insurance for risks related to (1) Public Official Errors and Omissions Liability, (2) General Liability, 
(3) Business Auto Liability, (4) Law Enforcement Professional Liability, and (5) Fire and Extended 
coverage. Settled claims resulting from these risks did not exceed commercial insurance coverage in 
the current year. The General Liability and Business Auto Liability are subject to a $1,000,000 per 
occurrence limit. The Public Official Errors and Omissions Liability and Law Enforcement 
Professional Liability are subject to a $1,000,000 per occurrence limit with a $100,000 deductible. The 
City maintained property insurance during the year on approximately $54 million in City property, 
subject to a $100,000 per occurrence retention for property claims. The property insurance is with 
Atlantic Specialty Insurance Company. 

Worker's Compensation 

The City established a limited risk management program for worker's compensation in 1988. 
Premiums are paid into the Workmen's Compensation Self-Insurance Fund by other funds and are 
available to pay claims, claim reserves, and administrative costs of the program. An excess coverage 
insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $175,000. Reported and an estimate of incurred, 
but not reported claims of $160,136 have been accrued as a liability based upon the service company's 
loss reserve report. Inteifund premiums are based upon the approximate premium. Payments to the 
worker's compensation fund are accounted for as an expenditure/expense of the paying fund. The 
Workmen's Compensation Self-Insurance Fund has a net position of $434,341 at September 30, 2019. 
There was no increase in insurance coverage from the prior year. No claims exceeded the City's 
insurance coverage for each of the past five fiscal years. 
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General Self-Insurance 

The City established a limited risk management program for employee medical coverage in 1988. 
Amounts paid into the General Self-Insurance Fund stem from employee contributions, payments by 
retired employees, and payments by other funds, and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and 
administrative costs of the program. During the year ended September 30, 2019, a total of $3,500,849 
was paid in benefits and administrative costs. The insurance fund has a net position of $1,194,871 at 
September 30, 2019. An excess coverage co-insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of 
$75,000 per calendar year. Incurred but not reported claims of $266,921 have been accrued as a liability 
based upon information provided by the claims administrators. Interfund payments are based on total 
operating expenses minus employee contributions and payments by retired employees. Payments to the 
Health Insurance Fund are accounted for as an expenditure/expense of the paying fund. There were no 
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. No claims exceeded the City's insurance coverage 
for each of the past four fiscal years. 

A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the self-insurance funds is as 
follows: 

Accrued 
Claims Claims Claims Accrued Claims 

October 1. 2019 Incurred Paid September 30.2019 
Worker's Compensation 

2019 $259,707 ($ 55,524) ($ 44,047) $160,136 
2018 $318,746 $ 119,344 ($ 178,383) $259,707 

Health Insurance: 
2019 $227,027 $2,166,834 ($2,393,861) $266,921 
2018 $380,782 $2,807,432 ($2,961,187) $227,027 

Litigation 

The City is defendant in several lawsuits in which the outcome is uncertain at the present time. In the 
opinion of the City Attorney, the City's ultimate exposure will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial condition of the City. The City believes that adequate provision has been made for any 
amounts not covered by insurance should the Court find in favor of the plaintiffs. 

Grant Disallowances 

The City participates in federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to program 
compliance audits under the Single Audit Act. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by 
the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. City management believes 
that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. 

Revenues from the State of Louisiana 

The General Fund receives various revenues from the State of Louisiana. The continuation of these 
revenues at these amounts is contingent on a variety of factors at the state level. 
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13. LEASES 

On January 9, 2018, the City of Ruston agreed to lease equipment from BancorpSouth Equipment Finance 
for the sum of $6,648 payable monthly on the 23'^'^ day of each month for 36 consecutive months with a 3T^ 
final payment of $215,884. The lease term commenced on January 23, 2018, and will end on February 23, 
2021. Annual lease payments total $79,773 for the current fiscal year. 

On February 13, 2019, the City of Ruston agreed to lease equipment from BancorpSouth Equipment 
Finance for the sum of $11,215 payable monthly on the 27"^ day of each month for 36 consecutive months 
with a 37^ final payment of $340,560. The lease term commenced on February 27, 2019, and will end on 
March 27, 2022. Annual lease payments total $134,580 for the current fiscal year. 

On April 5, 2019, the City of Ruston agreed to lease equipment from BancorpSouth Equipment Finance for 
the sum of $4,967 payable monthly on the 5^^ day of each month for 48 consecutive months with a 49^ final 
payment of $70,000. The lease term commenced on April 5, 2019, and will end on May 5, 2023. Annual 
lease payments total $59,607 for the current fiscal year. 

On April 26, 2019, the City of Ruston agreed to lease equipment from BancorpSouth Equipment Finance 
for the sum of $8,792 payable monthly on the 21®^ day of each month for 36 consecutive months with a 3T^ 
finalpayment of $267,020. The lease term commenced on March 21, 2019, and will end on April 21, 2022. 
Annual lease payments total $105,508 for the current fiscal year. 

Future minimum lease payments to be paid are: 

Year ending 
September 30. 

2020 $ 379,468 
2021 542,169 
2022 776,016 
2023 104.771 
Total $1.802.424 

14. COMPENSATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

In accordance with the requirements of the Office of the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, the 
following schedule reflects compensation paid to members of the Board of Aldermen, City of Ruston 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019: 

Carolyn E. Cage $11,400 
Jedd B. Lewis 11,400 
Angela R. Mayfield 11,400 
JimC. Pearce 11,400 
Bruce E. Siegmund 11,400 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus outbreak a "Public 
Health Emergency of International Concern" and on March 10, 2020, declared it to be a pandemic. 
Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the coronavirus include restrictions on 
travel, and quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and 
businesses. The coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had and are expected to have an 
adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries, including the geographical 
area in which the City operates. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is 
considerable uncertainty around the duration. Therefore, while the City anticipates this could negatively 
affect its operating results, the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated at 
this time. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
CLiarges tor services 
Fines and torteltures 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Grants 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government: 

Executive: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
GtLier employee benetlts 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benetlts 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total executive 

Intormatlon technology: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Other employee benetlts 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benetlts 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total Intormatlon technology 

Economic development: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Other employee benetlts 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benetlts 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total economic development 

Museum 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Other employee benetlts 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benetlts 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total Military Museum 

1,073,431 
1,248,000 
1,845,527 
3,128,925 
718,100 
16,000 

610,050 
583,333 

9,223,366 

775,132 
4,000 

380,951 
1,160,083 
917,394 
196,544 
20,000 

2,294,021 

149,832 
5,000 

57,614 
212,446 
431,551 
33,500 
18,000 

162,000 
857,497 

81,194 

29,917 
111,111 
140,551 

4,120 
5,000 

260,782 

40,480 

25,206 
65,686 
8,300 

1,073,431 
841,050 
657,527 

3,534,500 
828,600 

16,000 
688,925 
583,333 

8,223,366 

775,132 
4,000 

380,951 
1,160,083 

917,394 
196,544 
20,000 

2,294,021 

149,832 
7,000 

57,614 
214,446 
431,551 
33,500 
18,000 
162,000 
859,497 

81,194 

29,917 
111,110 
140,551 
4,120 
5,000 

260,781 

40,480 

25,206 
65,686 
8,300 

1,079,057 
1,051,599 
1,802,802 
1,916,371 
443,742 
52,826 

982,308 
741,811 

8,070,516 

743,128 
1,936 

374,000 
1,119,064 
1,680,686 

171,131 
15,877 

2,986,758 

147,554 
6,797 

56,465 
210,816 
296,744 

18,793 
12,507 

332,209 
871,070 

82,141 

29,572 
111,712 
547,257 

868 
4,905 

664,743 

41,160 

24,211 
65,371 

7,942 
77 

189 

5,626 
210,549 

1,145,275 
(1,618,129) 

(384,858) 
36,826 

293,383 
158,478 
(152,851) 

32,004 
2,065 
6,951 

41,019 
(763,293) 

25,413 
4,123 

(692,737) 

2,278 
203 

1,148 
3,630 

134,807 
14,707 
5,493 

(170,209) 
(11,573) 

(947) 

345 
(602) 

(406,706) 
3,252 

95 

(403,962) 

(680) 

995 
315 
358 
(77) 

(189) 

73,986 73,986 73,580 407 

See the accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules and Im^^endent auditors' report. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Ruston City Court 

Ruston City MorsLiol 

354,555 

272,325 

354,555 

272,325 

368,720 

271,427 

(14,165) 

City Holl/Clvlc Center: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Contract Labor 
OtLier employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 

Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total civic center/city hall 

Planning & zoning: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total planning & zoning 

Total general government 

Public satety: 
Police: 

Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total police 

Fire: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Contract Labor 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total tire 

Probation 

Total public satety 

93,585 
25,000 
35,000 
39,396 
192,981 
368,776 

37,300 

599,057 

447,236 
5,000 

207,181 
659,417 
254,057 

61,300 
12,000 

S,774 

5,698,997 

2,408,379 
215,000 

1,365,692 
3,989,071 

524,771 
277,310 
104,000 
135,900 

5,031,052 

2,371,471 
150,000 
90,000 

1,536,945 
4,148,416 

387,126 
198,300 

55,000 
237,000 

5,025,842 

115,000 

10,171,894 

93,585 
25,000 
35,000 
39,396 

192,981 
368,776 

37,300 

599,057 

447,236 
5,000 

207,181 
659,417 
254,057 

61,300 
12,000 

S,774 

5,700,996 

2,408,379 
215,000 

1,365,692 
3,989,071 
524,771 
277,310 
104,000 
135,900 

5,031,053 

2,196,471 
325,000 

90,000 
1,536,945 
4,148,416 

387,126 
198,300 

55,000 
237,000 

5,025,841 

115,000 

10,171,894 

91,805 
19,064 
76,330 
41,976 

229,176 
268,324 

16,791 
810 

515,101 

449,800 
3,789 

205,132 
658,721 
281,274 
37,971 

2,821 

980,787 

6,732,185 

2,135,440 
213,004 

1,356,357 
3,704,801 

457,044 
232,297 
102,399 

77,164 
4,573,706 

2,105,444 
289,241 

42,516 
1,467,770 
3,904,971 

305,454 
187,537 
50,931 
92,718 

4,541,611 

127,193 

1,780 
5,936 

(41,330) 
(2,580) 

(36,195) 
100,452 

20,509 
(810) 

83,955 

(2,564) 
1,211 
2,049 

696 
(27,217) 
23,329 

9,179 

5,^ 

(1,031,596) 

272,939 
1,996 
9,335 

284,269 
67,727 
45,013 

1,601 
58,736 

457,346 

91,027 
35,759 
47,484 
69,174 

243,445 
81,673 
10,762 
4,068 

144,282 
484,230 

(12,193) 

9,242,511 929,383 

See the accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules and Im^^pendent auditors' report. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

Public works: 
Administration: 

Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Contract Labor 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total administration 

Streets: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Contract Labor 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total streets 

Solid waste: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Contract Labor 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total solid waste 

Repair shop: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
Other employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Improvements and equipment 

Total repair shop 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

309,150 
500 

5,000 
123,477 
438,127 
118,898 
21,500 
2,500 

581,025 

782,843 
40,000 
100,000 
452,712 

1,375,555 
1,056,749 
182,000 
2,500 

1,750,000 
4,366,804 

689,978 
113,000 
60,000 

398,881 
1,261,859 
745,716 
225,000 

2,232,575 

340,016 
6,000 

193,402 
539,418 
56,630 
37,100 
4,000 

637,148 

Final 

309,150 
500 

5,000 
123,477 
438,127 
118,898 
21,500 
2,500 

581,024 

782,843 
85,000 
100,000 
452,712 

1,420,555 
1,388,835 
182,000 
2,500 

1,750,000 
4,743,891 

689,978 
148,000 
60,000 

398,881 
1,296,859 

745,716 
225,000 

2,267,575 

340,016 
6,000 

193,402 
539,418 
56,630 
37,100 

4,000 

Actual 
Amounts 

293,291 
696 

123,888 
417,876 
137,596 

14,414 
7,146 

577,031 

661,675 
71,021 
95,001 

412,379 
1,240,076 
1,397,574 
144,862 

620 
1,487,025 
4,270,157 

549,110 
128,583 
102,060 
356,285 

1,136,037 
533,603 
208,045 

73 

1,877,760 

338,751 
3,252 

192,771 
534,774 
55,798 
23,863 

1,500 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

15,859 
(196) 

5,000 
(412) 

20,251 
(18,698) 

7,086 
(4,646) 

3,993 

121,168 
13,979 
4,999 

40,333 
180,479 

(8,738) 
37,138 

1,880 
262,976 
473,734 

140,868 
19,417 
(42,060) 
42,596 
160,821 
212,113 

16,955 
(73) 

389,815 

1,265 
2,748 

630 
4,644 

832 
13,237 
2,500 

637,148 615,934 21,214 

See the accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules and Im^^endent auditors' report. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

Animal Control: 
Regular salaries 
Overtime salaries 
OtLier employee benefits 

Total salaries, wages, and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 

Total animal control 

Total public works 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) ot revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FiNANCiNG SOURCES (USES) 
Transters In 
Transters out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change In tund balance 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

138,664 
12,000 
54,149 

204,813 
51,371 
22,300 

4,000 
282,484 

8,100,036 

23,970,926 

(14,747,560) 

14,297,472 
(3,485,000) 
10,812,472 

(3,935,088) 

6,193,776 

$ 2,258,688 

Final 

138,664 
12,000 
54,149 

204,813 
51,371 
22,300 

4,000 
282,484 

8,512,122 

24,385,012 

(16,161,646) 

14,297,472 
(3,485,000) 
10,812,472 

(5,349,174) 

6,193,776 

844,602 

Actual 
Amounts 

101,200 
6,328 

45,623 
153,150 
28,549 
19,972 

1,891 
203,561 

7,544,444 

23,519,139 

(15,448,624) 

14,268,890 
(2,105,437) 

12,163,453 

(3,285,171) 

6,193,776 

$ 2,908,606 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 37,464 
5,672 
8,526 

51,663 
22,822 

2,328 
2,109 

78,922 

967,678 

865,465 

712,614 

(28,582) 
1,379,563 
1,350,981 

2,063,595 

$ 2,063,595 

See the accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules and Im^^endent auditors' report. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 

1968 SALES TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3D, 2019 

(unaudited) 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 

Variance wltti 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investment earnings 

$ 3,13D,CC0 $ 
500 

3,130,000 
300 

$ 3,118,339 
13 

$ (31,441) 
(433) 

Total revenues 3,130,300 3,130,300 3,1 18,374 (31,926) 

EXPENDITURES 
Collection and administrative 29,030 29,030 20,679 8,371 

Total expenditures 29,030 29,030 20,679 8,371 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 3,121,430 3,121,430 3,097,893 (23,333) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (3,400,000) (3,400,000) (3,1 10,697) 289,303 

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,400,000) (3,400,000) (3,1 10,697) 289,303 

Net change In fund balance (278,330) (278,330) (12,302) 263,743 

Fund balances - beginning 321,797 321,797 321,797 -

Fund balances - ending $ 43,247 $ 43,247 $ 308,993 $ 263,743 

74 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
1985 SALES TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Collection and administrative 

Total expenditures 

Excess ot revenues over expenditures 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

4,700,000 
2,000 

4,702,000 

19,557 
19,557 

4,682,443 

Final 

4,700,000 
2,000 

4,702,000 

19,557 
19,557 

4,682,443 

Actual 
Amounts 

4,648,353 
23 

4,648,376 

701 
701 

4,647,675 

Variance witti 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(51,647) 
(1,977) 

(53,624) 

18,856 
18,856 

(34,768) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transters out 

Total otLier financing sources (uses) 

Net cLiange In tund balance 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances-ending 

(4,875,000) 
(4,875,000) 

(192,557) 

208,190 

15,633 

(4,875,000) 
(4,875,000) 

(192,557) 

208,190 

15,633 

(4,700,023) 
(4,700,023) 

(52,348) 

208,190 

155,842 

174,977 
174,977 

140,209 

140,209 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
1990 SALES TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Collection and administrative 

Total expenditures 

Excess ot revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES] 
Transters out 

Total otLiertlnancIng sources (uses) 

Net cLiange In tund balance 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

$ 3,156,342 
150 

3,156,492 

9,000 
9,000 

3,147,492 

(3,050,000) 
(3,050,000) 

97,492 

796,208 

893,700 

Final 

$ 3,156,342 
150 

3,156,492 

9,000 
9,000 

3,147,492 

(3,050,000) 
(3,050,000) 

97,492 

796,208 

893,700 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 3,118,559 
16 

3,118,575 

680 
680 

3,117,895 

(3,110,697) 
(3,110,697) 

7,198 

796,208 

803,406 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(37,783) 
(134) 

(37,917) 

8,320 
8,320 

(29,597) 

(60,697) 
(60,697) 

(90,294) 

(90,294) 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
201 6 SALES TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Collection and administrative 
Debt Service 

Total expenditures 

Excess ot revenues over expenditures 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

$ 4,703,791 
5,000 

4,708,791 

8,550 
3,136,450 
3,145,000 

1,563,791 

Final 

$ 4,703,791 
5,000 

4,708,791 

8,550 
3,136,450 
3,145,000 

1,563,791 

Actual 
Amounts 

4,643,262 
1,312 

4,644,574 

3,268 
3,127,150 
3,130,418 

1,514,156 

Variance witti 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(60,529) 
(3,688) 

(64,217) 

5,282 
9,300 

14,582 

(49,635) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES] 
Transters out 

Total otLier tinancing sources (uses) 

Net cLiange In tund balance 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

(1,549,997) 
(1,549,997) 

13,794 

1,365,413 

$ 1,379,207 

(1,549,997) 
(1,549,997) 

13,794 

1,365,413 

$ 1,379,207 

(1,933,735) 
(1,933,735) 

(419,579) 

1,365,413 

945,834 

(383,738) 
(383,738) 

(433,373) 

$ (433,373) 
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CITY OF RUSTOK LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

(1) The Treasurer's Office compiles for the Mayor estimates of revenues and requests for 
appropriations of the annual budget. 

(2) During the month of August, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October i. The operating budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

(3) A public hearing is then conducted, after proper official journal notification, to obtain 
taxpayer comments. 

(4) Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

(5) The budget ordinance is structured such that revenues are budgeted by source, and 
appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of expenditure. 
Budgetary control is exercised at the departmental code level, with the exception of 
salaries, regular and overtime, which are at the line item level, or by projects, and the City 
Court and Probation (total combined), and City Marshal departments, which are 
budgeted at the department level. The Council may revise or amend the budget at its 
discretion during legally convened sessions. For the year ended September 30, 2019, 
amendments were made to the budget, including salary and benefit accounts to 
appropriate for the change in the police department and fire department pay plans; and 
grant revenue and expenditure accounts to account for grants received throughout the 
year; and various other accounts to appropriate open purchase orders as of the end of 
the prior year. 

(6) Comparison of budgeted and actual amounts as shown in the accompanying financial 
statements includes the General Fund and those special revenue funds which are 
included in the annual operating budget. (1968 Sales Tax, 1985 Sales Tax, 1990 Sales Tax, 
2016 Sales Tax, Parks and Recreation, and Section 8 Vouchers). Annual operating budgets 
are not prepared for the D.A.R.T. Grant Program, 1-20 TID Debt Service Fund and Sports 
Complex, but rather these funds are budgeted on a project basis. The capital budget 
ordinances which encompass the capital projects funds present cumulative as opposed 
to annual budget amounts and thus budget and actual comparisons are not reported in 
the accompanying financial statements for these funds. Budgetary control for the debt 
service funds is achieved through general bond indenture provisions. 

(7) All budgets are adopted on a basis substantially consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Appropriations which are not expended lapse at year end. 

(8) The City is legally required to prepare annual operating budgets for the Electric System, 
Water System, Sewer System, Telecommunications System, Ruston Airport Authority, 
Ambulance Fund, Workmen's Compensation, Health Insurance, Purchasing/Warehouse 
and General & Auto Liability Funds. The City is not, however, required to present an actual-
to-budget comparison for the enterprise and internal service funds. 
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CITY OFRUSTON, LOUISIANA 
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEETTS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SERTEMBER 30, 2019 

Fiscal 

Year 
Etidltig 

9/30/2019 

9/30/2018 

9/30/2017 

9/30/2016 

9/30/2015 

9/30/2014 

9/30/2013 

9/30/2012 

Actuarial 

Valuatlan 
Date 

10/1/2018 

10/1/2017 

10/1/2016 

10/1/2015 

10/1/2014 

10/1/2013 

10/1/2012 

10/1/2011 

Actuarial 
Value at 

Assets 
(al 

Actuarial 

Accrued 
Llablllly (AAL) 

Entry Age 
(bl 

22,290,060 

15,999,823 

15,577,012 

15,072,236 

14,492,534 

13,919,000 

13083,654 

12,446,761 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL) 
(b-al 

22,290,060 

15,999,823 

15,577,012 

15,072,236 

14,492,534 

13,919,000 

13083,654 

12,446,761 

Funded 

Ratia 

(g/bi 

Cavered 

Rayrall 
(cl 

11,150,370 

10,721,510 

11,760,657 

11,108,063 

10,307,549 

10,529,588 

10,712,853 

10,304,287 

UAAL as a 

Rercentage at 
Cavered 

Rayrall 
((b-al/d 

149.23% 

132.45% 

135.69% 

140.60% 

132.19% 

124.93% 

120.79% 

SCHEDULE OF EMRLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Fiscal 

Year 
Ending 

9/30/2019 

9/30/2018 

9/30/2017 

9/30/2016 

9/30/2015 

9/30/2014 

9/30/2013 

9/30/2012 

Annual 

OREB 
Cast 

470,579 

108,942) 

224,879 

101,447 

055,580 

032,285 

Amaunt 
Cantrlbuted 

180,342 

170,940 

185,024 

368,572 

341,270 

300,647 

278,377 

261,883 

Rercentage 
at Annual 

OREB Casts 
Cantrlbuted 

2.79% 

-15.41% 

15.11% 

33.46% 

31.94% 

27.68% 

26.37% 

25.37% 

Net 

OREB 
Obllgatlan 

22,290,060 

15,999,823 

7,167,622 

6,127,767 

5,394,893 

4,667,815 

3,882302 

3,105,099 

This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such information becomes avaiiabie. 

See accompanying notes to required supplementary Information and independent aii^^or's report. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
(unaudited) 

Employer's 
Employer Employer Proportionate Share 
Proportion Proportionate of the Net Pension Plan Fiduciary 

of ttie Share of the Employer's Liability (Asset) as a Net Position 
Net Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of its as a Percentage 

Fiscal Liability Liability Employee Covered Employee of the Total 
Year (Asset) (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability 

MERS: 

2019 3.843900% $ 16,062,737 $ 6,671,225 240.8% 64.68% 
2018 3.583200% 14,836,848 6,032,030 246.0% 63.94% 
2017 3.428600% 14,343,355 6,435,899 999.9% 63.49% 
2016 3.404900% 13,955,737 5,701,761 244.8% 63.34% 
2015 3.346300% 11,953,340 5,537,583 215.9% 68.71% 

MPERS: 

2019 0.695500% 6,316,595 2,139,431 295.2% 71.01% 
2018 0.748100% 6,324,576 2,121,341 298.1% 71.89% 
2017 0.672500% 5,870,965 2,068,683 283.8% 70.08% 
2016 0.663900% 6,299,388 2,789,026 223.1% 66.04% 
2015 0.715300% 5,603,526 3,095,114 181.0% 70.73% 

FRS: 

2019 0.987600% 6,184,669 2,256,407 274.1% 73.96% 
2018 0.957600% 5,508,282 2,243,550 245.5% 74.76% 
2017 0.978200% 5,606,625 2,155,839 260.1% 73.55% 
2016 0.984500% 6,439,468 1,990,089 323.6% 68.16% 
2015 0.970200% 5,236,246 1,674,852 312.6% 72.45% 

This schedule will contain ten years at historical information once such information becomes available. 

See accompanying notes to required supplementary Intormatlon md Independent auditor's report. 



CITY OF RUSTON 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PENSION OONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 3D, 2015THROUOH SEPTEMBER 30, 201' 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractual 
Required 

Contribution 

Contribution 
Deficiency 

(Excess) 

Employer's 
Covered 
Employee 

Payroll 

Contributions 
as a % of 
Covered 
Employee 

Payroll 

MERS: 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

,851,265 
,688,860 
,464,167 
,201,264 
,189,308 

,851,265 
,638,860 
,464,167 
,201,264 
,189,803 

6,671,225 
6,062,030 
6,435,899 
5,701,761 
5,537,583 

27.75% 
27.09% 
22.75% 
21.07% 
20.58% 

MPERS: 

2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

695,81 5 
686,262 
656,307 
548,599 
602,702 

695,815 
686,262 
656,807 
548,599 
602,702 

2,189,481 
2,121,841 
2,068,683 
2,789,026 
8,095,1 14 

82.50% 
82.85% 
81.75% 

FRS: 

2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 

626,158 
587.898 
587,466 
604.899 
608,069 

626,153 
537.898 
587,466 
604.899 
608,089 

2,256,407 
2,248,530 
2,155,889 
1,990,089 
1,674,852 

27.75% 
28.98% 
27.25% 
30.40% 
86.01% 

This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such Information becomes ovolloble. 

See accompanying notes to rqulred supplementary Information and^r'idependent auditor's report. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO THE AGENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Mayor Ronny Walker Amount 

Salary $ 100,409 
Benefits - medicare 1,456 
Benefits - health insurance 5,478 
Benefits - life insurance 49 
Benefits - retirement/457 plan 26,755 
Reimbursements - Cell Phone 1,800 
Travel -

Total $ 135,947 

82 



COMBINING FUND STATEMENTS 

83 



Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds ore used for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures 
for particular purposes. 

Ruston Parks and Recreation Board - This fund accounts for the receipts and subsequent 
expenditures of the City of Ruston Park and Recreation Program. 

D.A.R.T. Grant Program - This fund accounts tor the receipt and subsequent expenditures of a 
State of Louisiana Emergency Shelter Grant Program. 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program - This fund accounts tor receipt of Federal Funds 
and the payment of Housing Assistance Payments to qualifying rental property owners. 

1-20 TID Debt Service Fund 

The 1-20 TID Debt Service Fund accounts tor the accumulation of resources and payment of 
general obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources. 

Capital Projects Fund 

Capital projects funds are used to account tor the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

Sewer LCDBG Grant - This fund accounts tor receipts and disbursements of a grant received 
from the Louisiana Community Block Grant tor sewer improvements. 
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Internal Service Funds 

Internal service funds ore used to account for the financing of goods and services provided 
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, and to other 
government, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Workmen's Compensation Self-Insurance Fund - This fund accumulates resources to finance 
employee workmen's compensation injuries and claims. 

Health Insurance Fund - This fund accumulates resources to finance claims and judgments 
arising from employee health insurance and other exposures. 

Purchasing-Warehouse Fund - This fund coordinates purchasing and warehousing operations 
for all applicable funds. 

General and Auto Liability Fund - This fund accumulates resources to finance general and 
auto liability premiums and claims. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

INTERNALSERVOE FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Total 
Workmen's Health Purchasing/ General & Intemal Service 

Compensation Insurance Warehouse Auto Liability Funds 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 261,971 $ 331,773 $ 11,402 $ 190,218 $ 993,364 
Investments 3Ce,861 400,638 - - 704,499 
Receivables, net - 8,273 2,143 - 3,420 
Due from other funds - 326,966 130,268 149,303 826,737 
Prepaid Items 43,0CD - - 8,947 33,947 

Total current assets 610,832 1,462,632 163,813 848,668 2,383,967 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Capital Assets: 
Buildings - - 18,080 - 18,060 
Equipment - - 76,806 - 76,806 
Less accumulated depredation - - (73,144) - (73,144) 

Total noncurrent assets - - 14,242 - 14,242 
Total assets 610,832 1,462,632 1 78,037 848,668 2,600,239 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 9,311 860 286 2,383 18,192 
Accrued liabilities - - - - -
Due to other funds 6,844 - 81,938 123,000 218,782 
Claims and judgments 160,186 266,921 - 100,000 327,037 

Total current liabilities 1 76,491 267,781 82,174 227,383 734,081 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Compensated absences - - 13,098 - 1 3,098 
Total noncurrent liabilities - - 13,098 - 1 3,098 

Total liabilities 1 76,491 267,781 97,272 227,383 769,129 

NET POSITION 
Net Investments In capital assets - - 14,242 - 14,242 
Unrestricted 484,841 1,194,871 66,343 121,063 1,816,838 

Total net position $ 484,841 $ 1,194,871 $ 80,783 $ 121,063 $ 1,831,083 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 201 9 

NET POSITION 

Total 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Premiums paid by retired employees 
MIsc: Stop Loss Coverage Payments 
Retiree drug subsidy 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Cost of Services: 

Salaries, wages and employee benefits 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Depreciation 

Total cost of services 

Claims 
Insurance premiums 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income (loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment earnings 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers In 
Change In net position 

Total net position- beginning 
Total net position- ending 

Workmen's Health Purchasing/ General & Intemal Service 
Compensation Insurance Warehouse Auto Liability Funds 

$ 399,304 $ 3,179,286 $ $ 828,048 $ 4,406,838 
- 229,866 - - 229,866 

- 38,782 - 20,279 79,01 1 

399,304 8,467,884 - 848,827 4,713,713 

178,498 1 78,498 
- 4,110 28,464 - 27,374 
- - 6,677 - 6,677 
- - 4,326 - 4,326 
- - 3,983 - 3,983 

- 4,110 214,100 - 218,210 

44,047 2,898,861 73,434 2,318,862 
236,410 1,102,878 - 378,240 1,912,328 
280,437 8,300,849 214,100 648,694 4,644,100 

11 9,047 (82,963) (214,100) 1 99,633 71,613 

3,330 9,398 133 161 13,262 
3,330 9,398 133 161 13,262 

124,397 (28,867) (213,947) 1 99,794 86,877 

124,397 (28,867) (213,947) 1 99,794 86,877 
309,944 1,218,238 294,732 (78,71 1) 1,744,203 

$ 434,341 $ 1,194,871 $ 80,783 $ 121,083 $ 1,831,080 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
OOMBINING STATEMENT OF OASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVlOE FUNDS 
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2D19 

Workmen's 
Compensation 

Health 
Insurance 

Purchasing/ 
Warehouse 

General & 
Auto Liability 

Total 
Internal Service 

Funds 

Cash flows from operafing octivifies: 
Receipts from operations 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Olalms 
Other receipts 

$ 413,879 
(233,967) 

(55,524) 

$ 3,467,884 
(1,040,428) 

(2,534,971) 

$ 30,295 
(126,929) 
(184,810) 

$ 655,619 
(571,475) 

(75,454) 

$ 4,567,677 
(1,972,799) 

(184,810) 
(2,665,949) 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities 124,388 (107,515) (281,444) 8,690 (255,881) 

Cosh flows from noncopifal financing activities: 
Transfers In 

Net cash provided by (used In) noncapital activities - - - - -

Cash flows from Invesfing acflvifles: 
Proceecfe from sales and maturities of Investments 
Purchases on Investments 
Interest on Investments 

(52,130) 
5,349 

194,923 
9,598 153 161 

142,793 
15,261 

Net cash provided by (used In) Investing activities (46,781) 204,521 153 161 158,054 

Net Increcse (decrecse) In cash and cash equivalents 77,607 97,006 (281,291) 8,851 (97,827) 

Ocsh and cash equivalents - beginning of year 184,364 434,767 292,693 181,367 1,093,191 
Ocsh and cash equivalents - end of year $ 261,971 $ 531,773 $ 11,402 $ 190,218 $ 995,364 

Reconclllaflon of operafing Income (loss) fo nef cash 
provided by (used In) operafing acflvifles: 

Operating Income (loss) $ 119,047 $ (32,965) $ (214,100) $ 199,633 $ 71,615 

Adjustments to reconcile operating Income (loss) to 
net cash provided by (used In) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 5,935 5,935 

(Increcse) Decrecse In assets: 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid Items 

Increase (Decrease) In liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Olalms and judgments 
Oompensated absences 

112,704 

(2,444) 

(104,919) 

(2,906) 
(89,050) 

(22,489) 

39,895 

(2,145) 

(1,813) 

(80,634) 

11,313 

1,765 

(192,706) 

(5,051) 
23,654 

(24,981) 

(273,342) 
(65,024) 
11,313 

Total adjustments 5,341 (74,550) (67,344) (190,943) (327,496) 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities $ 124,388 $ (107,515) $ (281,444) $ 8,690 $ (255,881) 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
RUSTON PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgetary 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

Original Final Basis (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 598,171 $ 598,171 $ 601,038 $ 2,867 
CLiarges tor services 60,000 60,000 59,903 (97) 
Investment earnings 1,200 1,200 934 (266) 
Rent 10,000 10,000 4,630 (5,370) 
Miscellaneous 8,000 8,000 1,033 (6,967) 

Total revenues 677,371 677,371 667,538 (9,833) 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries, wages and employee benetlts 607,547 607,547 564,451 43,096 
Operating services 436,579 436,579 347,694 88,885 
Materials and supplies 33,750 33,750 34,697 (947) 
Travel and otLier 16,000 1 6,000 4,829 1 1,171 
Improvements and equipment 50,000 50,000 43,832 6,168 

Total expenditures 1,143,876 1,143,876 995,503 148,373 
Detlclency ot revenues over expenditures (466,505) (466,505) (327,965) 138,541 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES] 
Transters In 417,000 417,000 300,000 (117,000) 

Total otLier tinancing sources (uses) 417,000 417,000 300,000 (117,000) 

Net cLiange In tund balance (49,505) (49,505) (27,965) 21,541 

Fund balances - beginning 671,755 671,755 671,755 -

Fund balances - ending $ 622,250 $ 622,250 $ 643,790 $ 21,541 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part ot tPie tinanclal statements. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 
SECTION 8 VOUCHER HOUSING 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 1,096,000 $ 1,096,000 $ 1,118,596 $ 22,596 
Investment earnings 2,000 2,000 7,177 5,177 

Total revenues 1,098,000 1,098,000 1,125,773 27,773 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries, wages and employee benetlts 146,453 146,453 94,722 51,731 
Operating services 957,095 957,095 959,854 (2,759) 
Materials and Supplies 6,510 6,510 13,812 (7,302) 
Travel and otLier 2,000 2,000 6,004 (4,004) 
Improvements and equipment - - - -

Total expenditures 1,112,058 1,112,058 1,074,392 37,666 
Detlclency ot revenues over expenditures (14,058) (14,058) 51,381 65,439 

Net cLiange In tund balance (14,058) (14,058) 51,381 65,439 

Fund balances - beginning 821,369 821,369 821,369 -

Fund balances - ending $ 807,311 $ 807,311 $ 872,750 $ 65,439 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part ot tPie tinanclal statements. 
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HEARD, MCELROY, & VESTAL 
-LLC-

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 
SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 

318-429-1525 PHONE • 318-429-2070 FAX 

May 29, 2020 

Honorable Mayor Ronny Walker 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Ruston 
Ruston, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ruston, Louisiana (the City), as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 29, 2020. Our 
report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Ruston City Judge's 
Office, as described in our report on the City's financial statements. This report does not include the results 
of the other auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters 
that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Ruston, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the organization's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

HSdV 
A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FIRM 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

f VbTi^L, L.L, C. 
Shreveport, Louisiana 



HEARD, MCELROY, & VESTAL 
-LLC-

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 
SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 

318-429-1525 PHONE • 318-429-2070 FAX 

May 29, 2020 

Honorable Mayor Ronny Walker 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Ruston 
Ruston, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and 
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Ruston, Louisiana's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the City's major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2019. The City of Ruston's 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended September 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for its major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. This report is intended solely for 
the information and use of management, the City Council of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, others within 
the entity, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statue 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. 



We issued our report thereon dated May 29, 2020, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance, and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

f VtSlAL, L.L.C. 
Shreveport, Louisiana 



CITY OF RUSTON. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Grant Title 

Federal 

CFDA 

Number 

Federal 

Expenditures 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development: 

Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers 

Pass through Louisiana Office of Community Development: 

D.A.R.T. CDBG Program (Emergency Solutions Grant) 

Louisiana Community Development Block Grant 

14.871 

14.231 

14.228 

$ 1,074,392 

36,812 

Total United States Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 1,111,204 

United States Department of Transportation 

FAA - Airport Improvement Program 

Federal Highway Administration 

20.106 

20.205 

$ 592,137 

372.048 

Total Department of Transportation $ 964,185 

United States Department of Homeland Security 

Pass through Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals: 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 

Total Department of Homeland Security 

97.039 $ 701.261 

$ 701.261 

Total Federal Awards S 2.776.650 

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 



CITY OF RUSTON. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

1. Basis of Presentation 
The audit was performed pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the Uniform Guidance. The 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting used by the City in preparation of the government wide financial statements that report 
these awards. The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The preparation of the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

2. Disbursements 
Disbursements reported in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards cannot be traced, in every 
case, directly to the disbursements reported in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). However, the detailed information regarding the disbursements reflected in both issued 
reports can be traced to the City's detailed general ledger with adjustments for any year-end financial 
statement accruals and reversals. 

3. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
award programs of the City that were received directly from federal agencies or passed through other 

entities and governmental agencies. 

The City has prepared this Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to comply with the provisions 
of the Uniform Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. The 
Uniform Guidance stipulates that a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards be prepared showing 
total expenditures of each federal award program as identified in the Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) and for other federal financial awards that have not been assigned a catalog 
number. 

4. Subrecipient Payments 
The City's federal expenditures include subrecipient payments in the amount of $36,812 to D.A.R.T. 
CDBG Program. These awards were received from Emergency Solutions Grant Program, CFDA 
14.231. 

5. Indirect Cost Rate 
The City has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 



6. Subsequent Events 
The City is required to evaluate events or transactions that may occur after the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards date for potential recognition or disclosure in the notes to the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards. The City performed such an evaluation through May 29, 2020, 
the date which the schedule of expenditures of federal awards was available to be issued, and noted 
no events of transactions that occurred after the schedule of expenditures of federal awards date 
requiring recognition or disclosure. 



CITY OF RUSTON. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

A. Summary of Audit Results 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
City of Ruston, Louisiana. 

2. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the basic financial 
statements are reported. 

3. There are no findings of noncompliance relating to the basic financial statements of the City 
of Ruston, Louisiana disclosed during the audit. 

4. The auditor's report on compliance for major federal award programs of the City of Ruston, 
Louisiana expresses an unmodified opinion. 

5. There are no audit findings relative to major federal award programs of the City of Ruston, 
Louisiana. 

6. The programs tested as major programs included: 

Program CFDA No. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Voucher Program 14.871 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 

7. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000. 

8. The City of Ruston does qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

No findings to report. 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

No findings to report. 



CITY OF RUSTON. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

No findings were reported in the prior year. 
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HEARD, MCELROY, & VESTAL 
-LLC-

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 
SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 

318-429-1525 PHONE • 318-429-2070 FAX 

March 31,2020 

Honorable Mayor Ronny Walker 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Ruston 
Ruston, Louisiana 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

INDEPENDENT ACCOLfNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the City of Ruston 
(City) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period October 
1, 2018 through September 30, 2019. The City's management is responsible for those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The 
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. 
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described 
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address 
each of the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the 
entity's operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 

Exception: The entity does not have a budgeting policy. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

ETSdV 
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Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Page 2 

Exception: The entity has adequate written procedures covering purchasing, except for 
how vendors are added to the vendor list and retaining bid documentation. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

The entity has adequate written procedures covering disbursements. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

Exception: The entity does not have a receipts/collection policy. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

The entity has adequate written procedures covering payroll/personnel. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 

Exception: The entity does not have a contracting policy. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) 
required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases) 

Exception: The entity does not have a credit card policy. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers 

The entity has adequate written policies covering travel. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-
1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations, and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's 
ethics policy. 

Exception: The entity does not have an ethics policy. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Exception: The entity does not have a debt service policy. 



Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
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k) Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of critical data and 
frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated 
from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and 
software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed 
to recover operations after a critical event. 

Exception: The entity does not have a disaster recovery/business continuity policy. 

Managements Response: The City is currently drafting written policies on the areas not 
covered. We believe we are in full legal and regulatory compliance over these areas; 
however, we need to establish written policies to demonstrate compliance and establish an 
expectation of future compliance. 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal 
period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

The entity met with a quorum monthly. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund 
and major special revenue funds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-
actual comparisons, if budgeted) for major proprietary funds. Alternately, for those entities 
reporting on the non-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included financial activity relating to public funds if those public funds comprised more 
than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

Exception: Budget-to-actual items are not referenced in the monthly minutes, nor are they 
discussed per discussion with the client. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unrestricted 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

No exceptions noted. 

Management's Response: The City is currently developing budget to actual reporting with 
our software to allow for monthly presentation. The City maintains that we are in legal and 
regulatory compliance with respect to the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act, and the 
Council and Mayor are notified in writing in the event of a 5% budget variance requiring 
such notification. Currently the CFO and controller review and discuss the budget monthly. 
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Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the 
entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly 
select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from 
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
selected each account, and observe that: 

A listing of hank accounts was obtained from management. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Exception: On five of the hank statements tested, no written evidence of the date the 
reconciliation was prepared was present. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

Management's Response: Management initials their review on any hank account. With 
regards to old outstanding items, when the finance department came under new management, 
the hank account with the largest listing of outstanding items was handled as top priority. There 
remain 2 or 3 accounts with old outstanding items that need to he researched and cleared. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 
and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

Obtained a listing of deposit and collection locations from management. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

No exceptions noted. 
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b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

No exception noted. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exception noted. 

6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or 
insurance policy for theft. 

No exceptions noted. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 
under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other 
than hank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection 
log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 
10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Exception: Observed five instances where receipts were not documented with pre-
numbered receipts. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted tracing receipts/system reports to the deposit slip. As noted in a), five 
receipts were not pre-numbered. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 
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Management's Response: Management has carefully reviewed each cash collection site and 
will implement pre numbered receipts at all collection sites. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and 
petty cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less 
than 5). 

Obtained a listing of payment processing locations form management. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 
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Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete. 

Obtained a listing of credit cards from management. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the 
legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); 
these instances should not be reported.)] 

Exception: There was one instance where the cardholder approved their own purchases. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 
No exceptions noted. 

Managements Response: The cardholder approval was performed by the Treasurer on 
purchases made with her card by a purchasing agent. The purchase had been approved 
through the purchasing approval processes. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 
10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

No exceptions noted. 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 
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a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

No exceptions noted. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

Not exceptions noted. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

Contracts 

Not applicable because of no exceptions in previous year. 

Payroll and Personnel 

Not applicable because of no exceptions in previous year. 

Ethics 

15. Using 5 randomly selected employees/officials obtain ethics documentation from 
management, and: 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

No exceptions noted. 

b. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through 
signature verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal 
period. 

Exception: The entity does not have an ethics policy for employees to attest to reading. 

Management's Response: An ethics policy will be included in the next set of policies 
presented to Council for adoption into the City policy manual. 

http://www.gsa.gov
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Debt Service 

Not applicable because of no exceptions in previous year. 

Other 

16. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled. 

No misappropriations to be reported. 

17. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Entity has the fraud hotline placard posted on its website and premises. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported 
to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

f VtSTkL,Ll.C 

Shreveport, Louisiana 


